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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

9:07 a.m.: 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Next before the Commission 

today i s Case Number 13,711, the de novo a p p l i c a t i o n of the 

New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r an order r e q u i r i n g 

Tempo Energy, I n c . , and Peterson Petroleum Company and/or 

Joe D. Peterson t o plug one w e l l and an order f o r f e i t i n g 

the a p p l i c a b l e f i n a n c i a l assurance i n the event of 

operator's nonconsent [ s i c ] . We w i l l take t h a t case up 

probably l a s t t h i s morning. I t was continued from the 

February 8 t h , 2007, Commission meeting. 

(Off t he record a t 9:08 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 9:17 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next matter before the 

Commission today i s Case Number 13,711, the de novo 

A p p l i c a t i o n of the New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r 

an order r e q u i r i n g Tempo Energy, I n c . , Peterson Petroleum 

Company and/or Joe D. Peterson t o plug one w e l l and 

or d e r i n g f o r f e i t u r e of the a p p l i c a b l e f i n a n c i a l assurance 

i n the event of operator's noncompliance i n Lea County, New 

Mexico. 

Are there attorneys r e p r e s e n t i n g the p a r t i e s i n 

t h i s case? 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Chairman, honorable 

Commissioners, I'm David Brooks, a s s i s t a n t general counsel 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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f o r t he Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department, 

appearing f o r the D i v i s i o n . 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Commissioners, Scott 

H a l l , M i l l e r S t r a t v e r t law f i r m , appearing on behalf of 

Tempo Energy, Incorporated, and Travelers Indemnity 

Company. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , I assume Travelers 

i s t he one hol d i n g the bond on t h i s ? 

MR. HALL: Yes, c o r r e c t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Brooks, do you have an 

opening statement? 

MR. BROOKS: Yes, s i r . I ' l l be s u i t a b l y b r i e f , 

but I b e l i e v e t h a t t h i s i s a very unprecedented type of 

case f o r the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . I t s t a r t e d out as 

a plugging case and developed t h a t the company whose name 

appears i n a l l the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n documents 

denies t h a t they are the one who d r i l l e d t h i s w e l l or t h a t 

they have any i n t e r e s t i n t h i s w e l l , and contends t h a t 

t h e i r name and t h e i r bond were improperly used by another 

person t o d r i l l t h i s w e l l . 

So we have — you n o t i c e i t ' s brought against 

both Tempo Energy, which i s the operator of record, and 

Peterson Petroleum and Joe D. Peterson. Peterson 

Petroleum's name appears on some of the documents, but i t ' s 

scratched out, and Joe D. Peterson i s the i n d i v i d u a l who 
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signed a l l the documents r e l a t i n g t o t h i s w e l l . 

In the event that the — Well, f i r s t of a l l , we 

are asking the Commission to order Tempo Energy, the 

operator of record, and t h e i r surety, t o plug t h i s w e l l , as 

we normally do. However, i f the Commission accepts t h e i r 

argument that Mr. Peterson, and not — or his company, and 

not Tempo, i s responsible f o r t h i s w e l l , then we would ask 

— i n the a l t e r n a t i v e , ask the Commission to d i r e c t 

Peterson t o plug t h i s w e l l . 

The Division has not been able t o locate Mr. 

Peterson, and he has been through a bankruptcy. We believe 

tha t probably would not discharge his indebtedness t o — 

because i t ' s an environmental l i a b i l i t y , but we don't 

r e a l l y have much hope of c o l l e c t i n g from him. However, we 

would s t i l l l i k e to establish that i n case he ever writes a 

book or something. 

So our f i r s t cause i s that we contend th a t Tempo 

should be held responsible. 

We are going t o present documentary evidence. No 

one with the O i l Conservation Division has any personal 

knowledge of the history of t h i s w e l l . They know i t s 

current status, but no one has any personal knowledge. 

We w i l l c a l l Chris Williams t o t e s t i f y t o the 

current status of the well and to the e f f o r t s t o locate Mr. 

Peterson and to answer any questions the Commission may 
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have. Otherwise, we w i l l present simply a documentary 

case. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Ha l l , would you l i k e t o 

make your statement, or would you reserve i t ? 

MR. HALL: Brief comments, Mr. Chairman, on 

behalf of Tempo Energy, Inc., and Travelers. 

We w i l l present you proof today w i t h i n the 

context of the Division's authorizing statutes f o r 

f i n a n c i a l assurance and well plugging and the implementing 

regulations adopted pursuant thereto, including the 

Division's compliance and enforcement regulations, t h a t 

Tempo Energy, Inc., i s not the owner, operator or 

responsible party that d r i l l e d t h i s w e l l . 

The burden w i l l be on the Division t o establish 

t h a t Tempo Energy meets those d e f i n i t i o n s . We w i l l present 

witnesses who w i l l establish that they cannot, and by 

extension neither can be l i a b i l i t y established f o r t h e i r 

surety, Travelers Indemnity Company. 

Now we had l i s t e d three witnesses, one of whom 

was appearing by telephone today, and by agreement with Mr. 

Brooks, we have today located Mr. Jim Brazeal who actu a l l y 

d r i l l e d t h i s w e l l , and we w i l l o f f e r his testimony by 

telephone as well today, and he w i l l establish, I hope to 

your s a t i s f a c t i o n , that he d r i l l e d the well f o r Peterson, 
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Peterson Petroleum Company. 

And based on t h a t , i n conformance w i t h t he 

D i v i s i o n ' s A p p l i c a t i o n , we would ask you t o dismiss the 

A p p l i c a t i o n w i t h respect t o Tempo Energy and Trav e l e r s 

Indemnity and order enforcement against Joe D. Peterson or 

Peterson Petroleum Company. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you. 

Mr. Brooks, your f i r s t witness? 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, I'm going t o present some 

documents, i f i t please the Commission, p r i o r t o c a l l i n g my 

witness. I would l i k e t o — Do the Commissioners a l l have 

copies of the e x h i b i t s t h a t were f i l e d w i t h the prehearing 

statements? I have several sets here t h a t I can f u r n i s h 

you, i f you do not, but — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I ' l l need another s e t . 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. 

F i r s t I w i l l c a l l your a t t e n t i o n , Commissioners, 

t o what has been marked as OCD E x h i b i t Number 1, and t h i s 

i s a copy of a document t h a t i s generated from the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n ' s computer system t h a t l i s t s t he 

w e l l s t h a t a p a r t i c u l a r operator has and shows the date of 

l a s t p r o d u c t i o n . I would ask t h a t t h i s document — I would 

submit t h i s document as a copy of a document i n the OCD1s 

f i l e s . 

You w i l l note t h a t i t shows Tempo Energy, I n c . , 
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as the operator. I t shows one well being inactive — that 

i s the San Simon State Well Number 6 — and shows the date 

of l a s t production as being August of 1987. Also shows 

under notes th a t an intent t o P-and-A was approved on 10-3 

of 1990. 

Next ex h i b i t I w i l l o f f e r i s what has been — I 

w i l l c a l l your attention t o what has been marked as OCD 

Exhibit Number 2. OCD Exhibit Number 2 i s a c o l l e c t i o n of 

copies of a l l of the documents that appear i n the O i l 

Conservation Division's well f i l e with r e l a t i o n t o the San 

Simon State Well Number 6. 

There are a number of matters concerning the name 

of the operator, which I'm sure Mr. Hall w i l l point out to 

you, but I w i l l represent to the Commission — and you can 

inquire of Mr. Williams when we c a l l him about t h i s also — 

that the strikeouts that appear on some of these documents 

are the way they appear on the o r i g i n a l s i n the O i l 

Conservation Division f i l e s . And so f a r as we know, no one 

with the O i l Conservation Division made those 

modifications, although of course we can't prove the 

negative on that very w e l l . 

I w i l l next o f f e r OCD Exhibit Number 3, which i s 

a copy of an o i l and gas lease covering the land where t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r well i s located — i t ' s a lease from the State 

of New Mexico t o HNG O i l Company — and represent th a t t h i s 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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i s a true copy from the records of the State Land Office. 

S i m i l a r l y , OCD Exhibit Number 4 i s a copy of an 

assignment of t h i s lease from HNG O i l Company to HNG O i l 

Company and Northern Natural Gas Company. I t ' s dated 

September 1st, 1977, and again i s a copy from the records 

of the New Mexico State Land Office. 

I don't think there's any reason t o — Well, 

l e t ' s see here. I don't believe OCD Exhibit Number 5 has 

any relevance, because I believe the Application f o r permit 

t o d r i l l was f i l e d on t h i s i n 1-13 of '87, and t h i s OCD 

Exhibit Number 5 i s an in t e r n a l assignment, apparently, 

tha t was part of the Enron re-organization, but i t i s dated 

October 29th, 1987, which was a f t e r the wel l was d r i l l e d . 

I t again i s a copy from the Land Office records. 

OCD Exhibit Number 6 i s being offered — i s a 

proof of notice. I t i s being offered. We don't, 

obviously, need t o prove notice t o Tempo Energy and 

Travelers Indemnity Company because those parties have 

appeared i n t h i s proceeding. However, we o f f e r t h i s 

Exhibit Number 6 to prove that notice was attempted t o Mr. 

Peterson, and the n o t i f i c a t i o n s t o Mr. Peterson were 

returned. 

OCD Exhibits Numbers 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 and 12, 

we are — these are some documents that have t o do with the 

land i n question, and they are not authenticated, but I 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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understand from my discussion w i t h Mr. H a l l p r i o r t o the 

beginning of t h i s proceeding t h a t they w i l l be accepted by 

agreement; i s t h a t correct? 

MR. HALL: Yes, s i r . 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, these documents, I w i l l 

represent t o the Commission, come from the f i l e s of HNG O i l 

Company and — a c t u a l l y from the f i l e s of EOG — I'm s o r r y , 

from the f i l e s of EOG. HNG's name i s on them, but they 

come from the f i l e s of EOG, which i s the successor t o 

Enron. And they do have t o do w i t h the t i t l e t o the lands 

i n question. And they're a l i t t l e b i t complicated. 

I b e l i e v e they are not c o l l e c t i v e l y d e c i s i v e i n 

any way as t o the ownership of the land a t any time , but 

the E x h i b i t Number 7 i s a farmout from HNG O i l Company t o 

Joe D. Peterson. I t ' s dated January 16th, 1985, and i t 

does in c l u d e the u n i t on which t h i s w e l l i s lo c a t e d . 

OCD E x h i b i t Number 8 i s an amendment t o t h a t 

farmout, which i s dated A p r i l 3rd, 1985. And we don't 

t h i n k there's anything of importance i n t h a t e x h i b i t , 

a c t u a l l y , but f o r t r a c i n g purposes. 

OCD E x h i b i t Number 9 i s a copy of t h a t amendment 

w i t h another signature on i t . 

OCD E x h i b i t Number 10 i s where i t gets 

complicated. OCD E x h i b i t Number 10 i s a request signed by 

Joe D. Peterson f o r approval of a re-assignment of t h a t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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farmout — or r a t h e r of an assignment of t h a t farmout, t o 

V-F Petroleum. I t ' s dated A p r i l 23rd, 1985, which was 

p r i o r t o the time t h a t t h i s w e l l was d r i l l e d . 

And the i n t e r e s t i n g t h i n g about t h i s i s t h a t t h i s 

document i s not a c t u a l l y an assignment, as I'm sure Mr. 

H a l l w i l l p o i n t out, i t ' s a request f o r consent t o an 

assignment. However, we would o f f e r t h i s as evidence t h a t 

i n f a c t Peterson had dispossessed himself of t i t l e under 

t h i s farmout a t some time p r i o r t o the time t h i s w e l l was 

d r i l l e d . So i n our view, t h a t negates the in f e r e n c e t h a t 

would otherwise be drawn from OCD E x h i b i t Number 7, t o the 

e f f e c t t h a t Peterson had t i t l e t o t h i s t r a c t a t the time 

the w e l l was d r i l l e d . Granted, none of t h i s i s t o t a l l y 

d e c i s i v e evidence, but i t ' s what we've been able t o 

discover. 

So b a s i c a l l y the OCD E x h i b i t Number 10, i n our 

view, would suggest t h a t the a c t u a l t i t l e , or r i g h t t o 

d r i l l t h i s w e l l , would have been owned by V-F Petroleum, 

I n c . , a t the time t h a t t h i s w e l l was d r i l l e d . 

The next e x h i b i t we would o f f e r i s OCD E x h i b i t 

Number 11. OCD E x h i b i t Number 11 does not r e l a t e t o the 

p a r t i c u l a r u n i t — No, I'm so r r y , I'm g e t t i n g ahead of 

myself. OCD E x h i b i t Number 11 i s simply a copy of OCD 

E x h i b i t Number 10 w i t h an a d d i t i o n a l s i g n a t u r e . 

OCD E x h i b i t Number 12 does not r e l a t e t o the 
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p a r t i c u l a r u n i t on which t h i s w e l l i s lo c a t e d . OCD E x h i b i t 

Number 12 r e l a t e s t o the southeast qu a r t e r of t h e northwest 

q u a r t e r of Section Number 4, and t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l i s 

loca t e d i n the southeast quarter of the northeast q u a r t e r 

of Section Number 4, so i t does not apply t o the — i t has 

no a p p l i c a t i o n t o the land on which t h i s w e l l was lo c a t e d . 

However, i t does apply t o another q u a r t e r q u a r t e r 

s e c t i o n located i n the same u n i t — or i n the same s e c t i o n , 

I'm s o r r y , which i s Section 4, 22 South, 35 East, as you 

can see by comparing the d e s c r i p t i o n on E x h i b i t Number 12 

w i t h the d e s c r i p t i o n s i n E x h i b i t Number 2. 

And we want t o c a l l the a t t e n t i o n of the 

Commission t o the statement appearing i n — w e l l , f i r s t of 

a l l t o e x p l a i n what OCD E x h i b i t Number 12 i s , i t i s another 

request f o r consent. 

I t does not purport t o a c t u a l l y assign but i s 

again a request f o r consent, which i s some evidence, we 

b e l i e v e , of an assignment, from V-F Petroleum, i n whom 

we've es t a b l i s h e d presumed t i t l e , we b e l i e v e , by previous 

e x h i b i t s , t o Peterson of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r u n i t t o which i t 

r e l a t e s , which again, as I say, i s not the u n i t where t h i s 

w e l l i s located. But i t contains the statement i n t h a t 

l e t t e r , Peterson w i l l c o n t r a c t w i t h Tempo Energy, I n c . , f o r 

p e r m i t t i n g and other a d m i n i s t r a t i v e purposes. 

F i n a l l y , we o f f e r OCD E x h i b i t Number 13, which i s 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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a copy of the $50,000 blanket plugging bond posted by Tempo 

Energy, I n c . , and w r i t t e n by Travelers Indemnity Company as 

sur e t y . 

On the basis t h a t — We would o f f e r OCD E x h i b i t s 

Numbers 1 and 2 — 1, 2 and — w e l l , I'm s o r r y . We would 

o f f e r OCD E x h i b i t s Numbers 1 through 13 on the basis t h a t 

was explained i n response t o each one as I s t a t e d the basis 

f o r a d m i s s i b i l i t y as I bel i e v e i t t o e x i s t as t o each one, 

except the ones t h a t were by agreement. So a t t h i s time I 

w i l l submit OCD E x h i b i t s 1 through 13. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , do you have an 

o b j e c t i o n t o th a t ? 

MR. HALL: Point of c l a r i f i c a t i o n on one of the 

e x h i b i t s . Otherwise, no o b j e c t i o n . 

I f I might address Mr. Brooks testimony? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Go ahead. 

MR. HALL: I f we t u r n back t o E x h i b i t 7, the 

f i r s t page of the farmout agreement, I b e l i e v e we can 

s t i p u l a t e t h a t t h i s w e l l i s located i n the southeast 

q u a r t e r , northeast quarter of Section 4. There's no 

disp u t e about t h a t . I f you look a t the very f i r s t 

paragraph of the farmout agreement, Mr. Brooks i n d i c a t e d 

t h a t t h i s farmout agreement a p p l i e d t o the southeast 

q u a r t e r , northeast quarter. 

There's a reference i n the f i r s t page of the 
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farmout t h a t the farmout applies t o the lands described i n 

E x h i b i t A. I f you t u r n t o the E x h i b i t A, y o u ' l l see what's 

happened here. The HNG farmout t o Mr. Peterson e s t a b l i s h e d 

a checkerboard p a t t e r n of 40s. The southeast q u a r t e r , 

northeast q u a r t e r , was not included i n the lands under the 

farmout. So I bel i e v e i t ' s i n a p p l i c a b l e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Brooks? 

MR. BROOKS: Give me one second t o look a t t h i s . 

Okay, I believe t h a t the Commission can read t h i s 

f o r themselves. And I was not o f f e r i n g any testimony, I 

was simply attempting t o describe what these e x h i b i t s say. 

But i f you w i l l look a t E x h i b i t Number 8 which 

amends the farmout i t says, Amending E x h i b i t A under 

d e s c r i p t i o n t o read, Township 22 South, Range 35 East, 

Section 4, Lots 2 and 4, the northwest q u a r t e r and the 

southeast quarter of each quarter. 

And I bel i e v e the w e l l i n question i s i n t h e 

southeast of the northeast, which would be encompassed 

w i t h i n the d e s c r i p t i o n of the amendment. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , do you maintain your 

o b j e c t i o n or — 

MR. HALL: We do, provided Mr. Brooks could 

e s t a b l i s h s p e c i f i c assignments f o r t h a t acreage, we would < 

continue t o maintain t h a t o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. BROOKS: Well, I thought these documents were 
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being o f f e r e d by agreement. I would concede t h a t these 

documents are what they are i n t h a t they're not 

aut h e n t i c a t e d . Their relevance i s f o r the Commission t o 

judge. 

MR. HALL: We s t i p u l a t e t o t h e i r admission. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. The OCD E x h i b i t s 1 

through 13 w i l l be admitted. Mr. H a l l , Mr. Brooks, your 

comments on E x h i b i t s 7 and 8 are noted, and the documents 

w i l l stand f o r themselves i n the record. 

Mr. Brooks? 

MR. BROOKS: At t h i s time, we would c a l l — we 

would request the Commission t o c a l l Chris W i l l i a m s by 

telephone. 

(Off the record) 

MR. WILLIAMS: Hello? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Chris? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Hey, can you hear me? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: This i s Mark. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We're a t the hearing David was 

t a l k i n g t o you about — 

MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — and you know the d r i l l . 
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Are you someplace where you're comfortable? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. David, why don't you go 

ahead. 

MR. BROOKS: We need t o get him sworn, your 

Honor. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, Chris, would you r a i s e 

your r i g h t hand? 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Chairman, may I approach so t h a t 

I can speak i n t o the microphone? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

MR. BROOKS: Good morning, Mr. Wil l i a m s . 

MR. WILLIAMS: Morning. 

MR. BROOKS: Can you hear me? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes. 

CHRIS WILLIAMS (Present by telephone), 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. Mr. Williams, would you s t a t e your name f o r the 

record, please? 

A. Yeah, Chris Williams. 

Q. And by whom are you employed? 
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A. State of New Mexico, O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

Q. I n what capacity? 

A. D i s t r i c t Supervisor i n D i s t r i c t 1. 

Q. As D i s t r i c t Supervisor i n D i s t r i c t 1, are you 

responsible f o r overseeing the operation of w e l l s i n Lea 

County, New Mexico? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t he San Simon State Well 

Number 6? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And can you s t a t e according t o the OCD's records 

who i s the operator of t h a t well? 

A. According t o the records t h a t we have, the 

operator i s Tempo Energy, Incorporated. 

Q. And Mr. Williams, you are aware t h a t many of the 

documents i n t h a t f i l e are signed by an i n d i v i d u a l who 

appears t o be Joe D. Peterson? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Do you know who Mr. Peterson i s ? 

A. I don't know him pe r s o n a l l y . I j u s t know about 

him. 

Q. Was he or i s he a long-time r e s i d e n t of Lea 

County, New Mexico? 

A. Yes, he was. 

Q. And have you and your s t a f f undertaken t o attempt 
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t o f i n d Mr. Peterson f o r the purposes of t h i s proceeding? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. Have you had any success? 

A. No, we have not. 

Q. Mr. Williams, I asked you i f you were f a m i l i a r 

w i t h t he San Simon State Well Number 6. I s t h a t w e l l 

i n a c t i v e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And has i t been i n a c t i v e f o r more than one year? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And does t h a t w e l l need t o be plugged? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

MR. BROOKS: I be l i e v e t h a t i s a l l the questions 

I have f o r Mr. Williams, and I c a l l e d him p r i m a r i l y t o 

enable the Commissioners t o ask any questions they may 

have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: I f I might approach the microphone, 

Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Good morning, Mr. Williams. This i s Scott H a l l , 

r e p r e s e n t i n g Tempo Energy and Travelers Indemnity Company. 

Can you hear me okay? 
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A. You're going t o have t o speak up a l i t t l e b i t , 

Scott. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Can you hear me okay, Chris? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Okay. Mr. Williams, have you reviewed t h e w e l l 

f i l e f o r the San Simon Number 6 well? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Have you seen t h i s w e l l on the D i v i s i o n ' s 

i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Could you e x p l a i n t o us how the D i v i s i o n went 

about a t t a c h i n g t h i s p a r t i c u l a r OGRID number t o the San 

Simon State Number 6 well? 

A. On the i n i t i a l — the i n i t i a l d r i l l i n g p e r m i t , we 

normally a t t a c h the OGRID a t t h a t p o i n t i n time, and i t ' s 

attached a f t e r we check and see i f there's a bond i n place. 

And i f the bond i s i n place, then we give the operator an 

OGRID number i f they're a new operator — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — a new w e l l , we go i n and we a t t a c h a new pool 

name and a new property code. 

Q. Correct me i f I'm wrong, but d i d the OGRID 

numbering system e x i s t a t the time t h i s w e l l was d r i l l e d ? 

A. No, i t d i d not. 

Q. So can you e x p l a i n , then, how t h i s OGRID number 
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became attached — became associated w i t h t h i s w e l l ? 

A. No, I can't. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I'm assuming t h a t a computer generated i t . 

Q. Would t h a t have been a f u n c t i o n of the Santa Fe 

o f f i c e , do you believe? 

A. I t would have been a f u n c t i o n of the — yeah, the 

ONGARD system — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — or the work of ONGARD. 

Q. Having reviewed the w e l l f i l e e x h i b i t s , are we i n 

agreement t h a t they appear t o have been a l t e r e d ? 

A. Yes, they have been. 

Q. Do you know anything about t h a t a l t e r a t i o n ? 

A. No, other than we had no bond i n place, as near 

as I could t e l l , f o r Joe D. Peterson. And most e v e r y t h i n g 

he signed, he signed i n here as agent or c o n s u l t a n t , so we 

had — I guess they assumed t h a t he was not t h e operator. 

Q. Do you know who would have been resp o n s i b l e a t 

the time of the approval of the i n i t i a l APD f o r t h i s w e l l ? 

A. According t o the w e l l s f i l e s , i t appears t h a t 

Tempo Energy — 

Q. I'm sor r y , I misspoke. Do you know who would 

have been responsible among the D i v i s i o n s t a f f f o r 

approving the APD? 
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A. Oh, okay. That would have been, at the time, 

Jerry Sexton — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — or Paul Kautz. 

Q. Do you agree that having reviewed a l l of the well 

f i l e — the records i n the well f i l e f o r the San Simon 

State Number 6, that they a l l r e f l e c t a Hobbs, New Mexico, 

address? 

A. Yes, they do. 

Q. Do you know how i t came to be that the Division's 

records got changed to r e f l e c t a Midland address? 

A. No, I do not. Normally what happens i s , the 

operator sends us a change of address and then we input i t 

i n t o the system. 

Q. And there was no change of address submitted f o r 

t h i s w e l l , was there? 

A. I don't know i f there was or wasn't. I'm j u s t 

assuming, i f i t ' s changed addresses, that there was one. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Williams, you're aware of the 

Division's authority generally to i d e n t i f y the ownership of 

wells and leases? 

A. Generally what happens i s , once they f i l e an APD 

with us, and i f they're a new operator we assign them an 

OGRID at that point. I f they're an old operator t h e y ' l l 

have an OGRID, plus t h e y ' l l either have a blanket bond or 
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an i n d i v i d u a l well bond on the w e l l . And that's p r e t t y 

much how we, you know, figure out — or assign the 

operators at that point. 

Q. Now i n connection with t h i s proceeding, could you 

explain t o the Commission the due diligence that was done 

by the Division t o ascertain the ownership of the San Simon 

State Number 6 well? 

A. The due diligence, you mean — Primarily we 

accept what i s w r i t t e n on a piece of paper t o us, you know, 

a special — an APD, that t h i s i s the correct person 

d r i l l i n g the w e l l , or people or a company, and we check to 

see i f there's a bond i n place f o r that company. 

Q. For purposes of t h i s hearing, were you asked to 

investigate who the owner of the underlying o i l and gas 

lease was? 

A. No, we were not. 

Q. Also i n connection with these plugging cases 

generally t h a t the Division brings now, does the Division 

have a protocol for determining who i s an owner, operator 

or responsible party? 

A. Primarily what we do i s look at whoever i s on the 

permit or — you know, from either a change of operator or 

APD, and then we check and see which one has — see who has 

a bond i n place f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , or wells. 

Q. Do you go beyond that i f there i s a question 
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about the responsible party? 

A. Sometimes we have. 

Q. Was t h a t done i n t h i s case? 

A. On Tempo energy, I'm t r y i n g — t o be r e a l l y 

honest, I'm t r y i n g t o remember. I t was r i g h t a f t e r I s a i d 

t h a t I r e a l i z e d t h a t we had gone t o the courthouse and 

looked a t some, but I don't know — or t r i e d t o f i n d some, 

but I don't know i f t h i s was one of them. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I s i t c o r r e c t t o say t h a t the 

D i v i s i o n has made no determination t h a t Joe Peterson i s not 

an owner, operator or responsible p a r t y i n t h i s case? 

A. As f a r as, you know, we were concerned, we're 

assuming i t was Tempo Energy. 

Q. But the D i v i s i o n has not e l i m i n a t e d Joe D. 

Peterson as — 

A. Right. 

Q. — a responsible p a r t y ; i s t h a t accurate? 

MR. BROOKS: I'm going t o o b j e c t t o t h a t 

q uestion, because I'm not sure what Mr. H a l l means by 

"e l i m i n a t e d " . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , would you d e f i n e 

" e l i m i n a t e d " f o r us, f o r the record? 

MR. HALL: Well, i t ' s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the 

D i v i s i o n ' s prehearing statement t h a t the agency i s seeking 

r e l i e f not only against Tempo Energy but Joe D. Peterson. 
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So the question gets to whether the Division, the D i s t r i c t 

O ffice, has made a determination that Joe Peterson i s 

eliminated. And I believe the answer i s no. 

MR. BROOKS: Well, I think he's c e r t a i n l y free to 

ask Mr. Williams any questions about what in v e s t i g a t i o n has 

been made and what the results of that have been, and I 

think that the question c a l l s f o r something of a conclusion 

on the ultimate issue that Mr. Williams, i f he's made i t or 

hasn't made i t , could only have made i t on the basis of 

evidence, so perhaps we should get out the underlying 

evidence. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I ' l l overrule the objection. 

Q. (By Mr. Hall) Mr. Williams, what evidence does 

the Division have that Tempo Energy ever conducted any 

physical a c t i v i t y on the San Simon Number 6 well? 

A. The only thing we have i s the paperwork tha t was 

f i l e d i n t h i s o f f i c e . 

Q. Other than that, was Tempo Energy ever observed 

out on the f i e l d , d r i l l i n g or operating t h i s well? 

A. That I don't know. 

Q. Do you know who the lease owner i s f o r the 

underlying o i l and gas lease f o r t h i s well? 

A. No, we don't. 

Q. Was any e f f o r t made to check with the lease owner 

to see i f they want to u t i l i z e the wellbore? 
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A. No, because i t i s not p a r t of our f u n c t i o n . 

Q. So i t would be c o r r e c t t o say t h a t t he D i v i s i o n 

made no demand on the o i l and gas leaseholder? 

A. No, we have not. 

Q. Do you agree t h a t t h i s o i l and gas lease i s a 

State of New Mexico o i l and gas lease? 

A. Yes, the San Simon State, yes. 

Q. Okay. Did the D i v i s i o n check w i t h t h e State Land 

O f f i c e t o see what d i s p o s i t i o n should be made of t h e 

wellbore? 

A. I do not know. I don't know i f we have or 

haven't. 

Q. I s n ' t i t t r u e , Mr. Williams, t h a t i f the 

Commission determines t h a t Tempo Energy i s not an owner, 

operator or responsible p a r t y , i t would s t i l l have recourse 

against Mr. Peterson? 

A. That's a l e g a l question t h a t I can't answer. 

Q. Okay. Wouldn't the D i v i s i o n s t i l l have access t o 

reclamation funds t o plug t h i s well? 

A. Yes, we would have access t o them, yes. 

MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Brooks? 

MR. BROOKS: Nothing f u r t h e r from the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Chris, thank you very 

much, s o r r y t o bother you. 
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COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Can't we have — 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Oh, w a i t a minute, w a i t a 

minute, I'm s o r r y . This i s not a t r i a l . Commissioner 

B a i l e y would l i k e t o ask you a question. 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. Good morning, Mr. Williams. 

A. Good morning. 

Q. This i s San Simon Number 6. Are t h e r e other San 

Simon w e l l s i n t h a t Section 4? 

A. I don't know. I could check. 

Q. Would you, please? 

I'm s o r r y , I can't hear you, Jami. 

Q. Would you please? 

A. Yes, I w i l l . 

Q. Can you hear me b e t t e r now? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Okay. 

A. That's b e t t e r . 

Q. According t o the papers t h a t I've seen, t h e r e are 

q u i t e a few San Simon w e l l s i n t h a t Section 4. 

A. Okay. 

Q. And as the Number 6, who determines the name of a 

well ? The operator or the OCD? 
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A. Normally i t ' s the operator, but we have a say i n 

whether we t h i n k i t ' s a name t h a t ' s v i a b l e f o r t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r area. 

Q. So since t h i s i s the Number 6, can we make an 

assumption t h a t there was 1 through 5 somewhere also? 

A. Yes, p o s s i b l y . But I can check r e a l quick. I've 

got t h e system up, so... 

Q. Great. 

A. Okay, 4-22-35, i t ' s a c t u a l l y showing no w e l l s i n 

Section 4 or Township 22 or 35, Range 35. 

Q. No producing wells? 

A. Right. 

Q. But w e l l s would have been d r i l l e d t h a t may not be 

showing up on the system you're l o o k i n g a t r i g h t now? 

A. Right, r i g h t . I f they — They may have been 

dropped when i t — you know, i f they were way before the 

ONGARD system. 

Q. Okay, pre- — 

A. Pre-ONGARD. 

Q. — 1994. 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. There are documents f o r the previous w e l l s 

t h a t were d r i l l e d i n t h a t s e c t i o n . Can you p u l l them up on 

OCD online? 

A. Well, p o s s i b l y . Right now I'm i n RBDMS, and i t 
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i s showing a b s o l u t e l y nothing i n t h a t s e c t i o n . Let me make 

sure t h a t they have the r i g h t range on t h i s . 

Q. We're t a l k i n g Section 4 of 22 South, 35 East. 

A. That's c o r r e c t , and i t ' s showing — Let me c l i c k 

i t again. No, i t ' s showing nothing. API — b r i n g i t up. 

Let me see i f I can run i t on GIS and see i f 

there's anything else showing up i n t h e r e plugged or 

anything. 

Okay, a c t u a l l y we're showing only one w e l l i n 

t h a t s e c t i o n on GIS t h a t ' s been spotted. 

Q. As an a c t i v e well? 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay, but — 

A. We're not showing any other w e l l s , e i t h e r plugged 

or anything else i n here e i t h e r . 

Q. Then t h a t means t h a t the only documents 

i n d i c a t i n g the other w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d i n t h a t 

s e c t i o n are contained i n the Land O f f i c e lease f i l e ? 

A. Probably so. 

Q. Which do i n d i c a t e t h a t Tempo had Joe Peterson — 

or Mr. Peterson as t h e i r agent f o r more than j u s t t h i s one 

w e l l . 

A. Okay. 

Q. And i n f a c t , there were a minimum of f i v e other 

w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d w i t h Tempo as the operator and Mr. 
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Peterson a c t i n g as t h e i r agent. 

A. Okay, I have t o take your word f o r i t because 

i t ' s not showing up on RBDMS. 

Q. Okay, but you're — you can't get t o OCD o n l i n e 

f o r those previous w e l l s e i t h e r ? 

A. I can t r y i t . Okay. Well, I j u s t went i n t o 

o n l i n e and put i n t h a t s e c t i o n , township and range, and the 

only t h i n g i t ' s b r i n g i n g up i s t h a t Well Number 6. 

Q. Then t h a t means a l l of t h a t other i n f o r m a t i o n i s 

only found — 

A. Right. 

Q. — i n the Land O f f i c e — 

A. Land O f f i c e — 

Q. — lease f i l e ? 

A. Right, lease records. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I n t e r e s t i n g . Okay. Well 

then, apparently I have no other questions f o r you. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I have no questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Chris, have you ever d e a l t w i t h anybody el s e from 

Tempo? 

A. No. 
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Q. Have you d e a l t w i t h Mr. Peterson as a 

re p r e s e n t a t i v e from Tempo? 

A. No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, I have no f u r t h e r 

questions. 

Mr. Brooks, any r e b u t t a l on the Commissioners' 

questions? 

MR. BROOKS: No f u r t h e r questions of th e witness. 

I have one other e x h i b i t I want t o o f f e r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. From Mr. W i l l i a m s ' 

testimony? 

MR. BROOKS: No, i t has t o do w i t h n o t i c e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Chris, thank you very 

much. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: This time I r e a l l y mean i t . 

THE WITNESS: A l l r i g h t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Talk t o you l a t e r . 

THE WITNESS: Bye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Bye. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, the other e x h i b i t I r e a l i z e 

t h a t I need t o make my case against Mr. Peterson as w e l l , I 

don't t h i n k i t ' s of any value, but I would want t o make 

sure we get i t accordingly documented. 

Accordingly, I w i l l o f f e r E x h i b i t Number 14, 
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which i s a copy of the a f f i d a v i t of p u b l i c a t i o n a t the time 

of t he D i v i s i o n Hearing, which I b e l i e v e e s t a b l i s h e s 

j u r i s d i c t i o n against Mr. Peterson, although a l l the m a i l we 

sent t o him was returned. 

So I w i l l tender E x h i b i t Number 14. I only have 

one copy. I neglected t o put i t i n the e x h i b i t package. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , I'm assuming you 

have no o b j e c t i o n t o that ? 

MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. BROOKS: That — Well, I'm assuming you're 

a d m i t t i n g i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Yes. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, then t h a t concludes t he 

D i v i s i o n ' s case. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: At t h i s time, Mr. Chairman, we would 

c a l l Frank Pannell t o the stand. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Pannell? 

MR. PANNELL: I s t h i s where I s i t or where — 

MR. HALL: S i t r i g h t — 

MR. PANNELL: Over here? Good, I ' l l be able t o 

hear. 

I l e f t my hearing a i d on the dresser a t home. 

Works r e a l w e l l . 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 
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FRANK PANNELL. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. For the record, please s t a t e your name. 

A. My name i s Frank Pannell. 

Q. Would you s p e l l t h a t f o r the c o u r t r e p o r t e r , 

please? 

A. P-a-n-n-e-1-1. 

Q. A l l r i g h t — 

A. Frank, of course, F-r-a-n-k. 

Q. Mr. Pannell, where do you l i v e ? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

Q. And how are you employed? 

A. I'm a c t u a l l y v i c e president of Tempo Energy. I'm 

co-owner of i t , a c t u a l l y , yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Could you t e l l the Commissioners the 

time periods you have been associated w i t h Tempo Energy? 

A. B a s i c a l l y , I was associated w i t h Tempo when they 

were d r i l l i n g these e a r l y w e l l s back i n the e a r l y 1980s. I 

invest e d i n j u s t about every w e l l they ever d r i l l e d , 

i n c l u d i n g the dry ones. 

And then when they took bankruptcy i n the e a r l y 

1990s, they were i n bankruptcy proceedings f o r a couple of 
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years, then they went through t o t a l bankruptcy, and I 

bought everyone out of the company i n 1993, or whatever 

year i t was, t o gain 100 percent of the stock of Tempo 

Energy. 

Q. I f you would — 

A. I'm very f a m i l i a r w i t h t h e i r operations, by the 

way. Excuse me, go ahead. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Pannell, how long have you been 

v i c e p r e s i d e n t of Tempo Energy? 

A. Since 1993. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you would t u r n t o t h a t s e t of 

e x h i b i t s , what we've marked as E x h i b i t Number 8. 

A. Number 8? 

Q. Yes, s i r . Would you i d e n t i f y t h a t , please? Do 

you have t h a t i n f r o n t of you? 

A. I'm g e t t i n g close. Okay, Number 8 i s — yes, 

t h a t ' s the bankruptcy f i l i n g i n the US c o u r t , yes, d i s t r i c t 

c o u r t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I s t h a t s t y l e d , Disclosure Statement 

t o Accompany Plan of Reorganization i n r e : Tempo Energy, 

Inc . ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i f you look a t the date stamp i n the upper-

r i g h t - h a n d corner, i s t h a t stamped June 15, 1993? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , yes. 
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Q. And does t h i s plan of r e o r g a n i z a t i o n i n c l u d e an 

in v e n t o r y of the p r o p e r t i e s t h a t you bought out of the 

Tempo Energy bankruptcy estate? 

A. Yes, s i r , the p r o p e r t i e s a t Tempo we'd have an 

i n t e r e s t i n or were operating were included i n the 

bankruptcy assets. And t h a t was, I t h i n k , some 28 

p r o p e r t i e s e i t h e r operated, they own p a r t s o f , or — and 

operated a l l o f , or most o f . 

Q. I f you w i l l t u r n t o page 4 of t h a t E x h i b i t 8, 

does t h a t appear t o be an index f o r the document? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i f you'd look up the r e f o r pages — some 

e n t r i e s f o r page 6 — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — does t h a t — i f you go t o page 6, i s t h i s a 

l i s t of w e l l s i n which Tempo owns an i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Right, yes, s i r . 

Q. And then i f you t u r n t o page 7, does i t l i s t 

w e l l s i n Lea County, New Mexico? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And among those w e l l s , i s the San Simon State 

Number 6 l i s t e d ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. I f you could go on t o page 8, does t h a t show a 

l i s t of w e l l s operated by Tempo? 
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A. At that time, yes. 

Q. Yes. And at the bottom of page 8, does tha t show 

a l i s t of wells operated by Tempo i n Lea County, New 

Mexico? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And again, i s the San Simon State Number 6 shown 

on tha t l i s t ? 

A. No, i t ' s not. 

Q. Now, i s Exhibit 8 a document maintained by Tempo 

i n the regular course of i t s business? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

MR. HALL: At t h i s point, Mr. Chairman, we'd move 

the admission of Tempo Energy Exhibit 8. 

MR. BROOKS: No objection. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Exhibit 8 i s so admitted. 

Q. (By Mr. Hall) Mr. Pannell, i f you would t u r n 

back t o our ex h i b i t packet, Exhibits 1 through 7 — and Mr. 

Chairman, these are duplicates of the Division's e x h i b i t ; 

i t i s the w e l l - f i l e exhibits. 

A. Yeah, these look l i k e a l l the e x h i b i t s . I 

actu a l l y answered Mr. Williams' l e t t e r o r i g i n a l l y , and I've 

even got the o r i g i n a l w r i t i n g on the thi n g where I did a l l 

the research on t h i s myself, wrote them a l e t t e r , copied 

a l l these documents, sent them t o them and noted, you know, 

a l l the delineations of signature. 
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And they even had a n o t a r i z e d document they had 

done t h i s t o w i t h o u t any n o t a r i z a t i o n . Normally on a 

no t a r i z e d document, t o my understanding, you would — 

someone would have t o i n i t i a l i t t o — 

Q. Let me ask you a question about those documents. 

A. A l l r i g h t . 

Q. Each of those documents t h a t came from the OCD's 

w e l l f i l e s — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — do each of them show a Hobbs, New Mexico, 

address? 

A. Yes, they do. 

Q. Now t o your knowledge, d i d Tempo ever have a 

Hobbs address? 

A. No, we never d i d . We've never had a Hobbs. We 

always had a Midland, Texas, address since the e a r l y 1980s. 

Q. I n c l u d i n g the time before you became v i c e 

p r e s i d e n t — 

A. Exactly, yes, s i r . 

Q. — of Tempo? You know that ? 

A. (Nods) 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 7 of our e x h i b i t s . That's 

the C-103. Does t h a t appear t o be a plugging p l a n f o r the 

w e l l ? 

A. Yes, i t does, a c t u a l l y , and I — i n the course of 
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— i f i t ' s okay i f I t e l l them, t h i s Guy Baber t h a t signed 

t h i s t h i n g , I called — I've looked up on the Int e r n e t , 

found his name and number i n Hobbs. He's l i k e an 80-year-

old man — 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Chairman, I would object t o the 

witness t e s t i f y i n g as t o anything Mr. Baber said t o him. 

THE WITNESS: He said Joe Peterson ought t o be — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Wait a minute. 

THE WITNESS: But other than th a t — 

MR. HALL: Let me ask the witness a question, Mr. 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Yeah, why don't you rephrase 

the question. 

Q. (By Mr. Hall) Mr. Pannell, i f you would look at 

Exhibit 7, was — to your knowledge, was Guy Baber an 

authorized agent f o r Tempo Energy? 

A. No, he was not, never had heard of him. 

Q. Do you know — Isn't Guy Baber associated with 

Pronghorn? 

A. I have no idea. I don't know who Pronghorn i s , 

to be honest with you. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f you look back at Exhibits 1 

through 6, i n each of those instances where the documents 

were signed by Joe D. Peterson, do you know whether at any 

point i n time Joe D. Peterson had authorization t o sign any 
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of those documents on behalf of Tempo? 

A. To my knowledge he d i d not, no. He had no 

a u t h o r i z a t i o n whatsoever. He wasn't even working f o r Tempo 

a t t h a t time. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did you i n v e s t i g a t e whether Joe 

Peterson was ever authorized t o u t i l i z e Tempo Energy's 

bond? 

A. Yes, I d i d , I — t o the p o i n t t h a t I , you know, 

asked Mr. Garber and Mr. Douglas, who were o f f i c e r s of 

Tempo. 

MR. BROOKS: Again, Mr. Chairman, I'm going t o 

ob j e c t t o h i s t e s t i f y i n g t o anything someone t o l d him. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Sustained. 

THE WITNESS: You can c a l l Mr. Garber, he w i l l 

t e l l you the same t h i n g . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Pannell, from your 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n d i d you conclude t h a t Mr. Peterson was not 

auth o r i z e d t o — 

A. I d i d --

Q. — use the bond? 

A. — he had no a u t h o r i z a t i o n whatsoever. 

Q. A l l r i g h t — 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, I would o b j e c t on the grounds 

t h a t i f h i s i n v e s t i g a t i o n merely consisted of t a l k i n g t o 

anyone, then h i s conclusions based on h i s o b j e c t i o n i s 
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simply an i n d i r e c t way of a d m i t t i n g hearsay. 

THE WITNESS: I also looked a t a l l the corporate 

records — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Wait a minute. Why don't you 

go ahead and take the witness on v o i r d i r e and e s t a b l i s h 

whether or not — 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. 

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. I'm so r r y , what was your name? 

A. Frank Pannell. 

Q. Mr. — I should remember t h a t . Mr. Pannell, what 

d i d you — of what d i d your i n v e s t i g a t i o n consist? 

A. Joe Peterson? I went — 

Q. Your — Yeah, your — 

A. I — 

Q. — i n v e s t i g a t i o n of Mr. Peterson's a u t h o r i t y . 

A. Okay, I went through the corporate records t o see 

i f t h e r e had been any corporate a u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r — I have 

a l l the o r i g i n a l corporate records f o r Tempo Energy — 

Q. Right. 

A. — from day one, you know, from when they were 

f i r s t s t a r t e d t o when we reorganized, and I went through 

a l l t he records there t o see i f he had any a u t h o r i z a t i o n 

l e g a l l y through the board t o do anything, and he d i d not. 
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Q. Anything else, other than your — 

A. That's — 

Q. — conversations? 

A. That's i t . 

MR. BROOKS: Again, Mr. Chairman, I would object. 

These matters could be placed of record, and I think we're 

doing t h i s by hearsay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, Mr. Brooks, insofar as 

his knowledge of that authority comes from the corporate 

records and he i s a corporate o f f i c e r , I ' l l overrule your 

objection. 

MR. BROOKS: Yes, s i r . 

DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed) 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Pannell, have you thoroughly reviewed the 

records that Tempo Energy kept i n the regular course of 

business t o confirm that they did not contain any evidence 

of agency or any other authority f o r Joe Peterson t o act on 

behalf of Tempo Energy? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And was there any evidence — 

A. There was — 

Q. — of any such authority? 

A. — no evidence whatsoever he had any auth o r i t y , 

no. 
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Q. Did you i n v e s t i g a t e whether Tempo ever received 

any p r o d u c t i o n proceeds or other b e n e f i t s from the San 

Simon State Number 6 well? 

A. The records we have do not r e f l e c t any income 

whatsoever, no. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I n f a c t , do they i n d i c a t e any — 

A. Any connection a t a l l , no. 

Q. — existence of the San Simon — 

A. No s i r . 

Q. — State 6 w e l l a t a l l ? 

A. No, s i r . 

MR. HALL: That concludes my d i r e c t of t h i s 

witness, Mr. Chairman. 

We'd move the admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 8. 

1 through 7 are d u p l i c a t i o n s of the D i v i s i o n ' s e x h i b i t s , 

the w e l l f i l e . 

And E x h i b i t 8 i s the bankruptcy plan of 

r e o r g a n i z a t i o n . I bel i e v e i t ' s already — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Brooks, any 

obje c t i o n ? 

MR. BROOKS: No o b j e c t i o n t o the e x h i b i t s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, the E x h i b i t s 1 through 8 

are admitted. 

Mr. Brooks, d i d you have a cross of t h i s witness? 

MR. BROOKS: I do. 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. Mr. Pannell, what exactly was your r o l e i n the 

management of Tempo Energy p r i o r t o — when was i t , 199- — 

A. 1993, I had no management r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

whatsoever. 

Q. So there were other people who were managing — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — the business and a f f a i r s of — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — Tempo Energy on a day-to-day basis? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Who were those individuals? 

A. Tom Garber, and to some extent the — I t r i e d t o 

say his name a while ago. What was i t ? Earl Douglas. The 

two o f f i c e r s of the company. 

Q. And you were not a corporate o f f i c e r — 

A. No, I was not. 

Q. — p r i o r to 1993? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Mr. Pannell, one of your — t h i s i s merely stated 

as background and not me t e s t i f y i n g , though I'm going t o 

ask you a question about i t , but one of your attorneys said 

something t o me at one time t o the e f f e c t that Mr. Peterson 

at one time acted as a consultant f o r Tempo Energy. Do you 
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have knowledge of that ? 

MR. HALL: Object t o t h a t . That i s d i r e c t 

hearsay. He's going t o ask him t o respond t o an o u t - o f -

c o u r t statement. D i r e c t hearsay. 

MR. BROOKS: I asked d i d he have any knowledge of 

t h a t . 

MR. HALL: Of the statement? 

MR. BROOKS: No, what I'm — I ' l l c l a r i f y . I 

meant, d i d he have any knowledge of Mr. Peterson having 

been employed as a consultant f o r Tempo Energy a t some 

p o i n t i n time. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: As long as the question i s 

phrased t h a t way, I ' l l o v e r r u l e — 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — the o b j e c t i o n . 

Q. (By Mr. Brooks) Then t h a t ' s the question — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — Mr. Pannell. 

A. Yes, t o my knowledge Joe Peterson was used as a 

con s u l t a n t on the w e l l s i t e . He had t o c a l l Tom Garber f o r 

every d e c i s i o n . He couldn't do anything on h i s own. 

Q. Okay, do you — 

A. I do know t h a t . 

Q. — have any knowledge as t o the exact time frames 

w i t h i n which Mr. Peterson was so employed? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Vaguely 1982 t o '84, '85. And Mr. Garber could 

probably t e l l you b e t t e r than t h a t . 

MR. BROOKS: Were you aware — Okay, I t h i n k 

t h a t ' s a l l — as f a r as I ' l l ask the witness about t h a t . I 

b e l i e v e t h a t ' s a l l my questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Redirect? 

MR. HALL: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. When you went through the corporate records, d i d 

you n o t i c e any approved APDs f o r San Simon w e l l s , other 

than San Simon Number 6? 

A. No, ma'am. No, I d i d not. I can t e l l you t h a t 

since I've been associated w i t h Tempo t h a t we've had some 

l e t t e r s from OCD about them. And we've w r i t t e n OCD back, 

and apparently they — somebody got ahold of — whoever, 

Joe Peterson or somebody, got them plugged. But we knew 

t h a t they were out t h e r e , apparently. I d i d not know about 

them p e r s o n a l l y , no. 

Q. But — 

A. We got correspondence from the OCD about w e l l s 

and — 

Q. About other San Simon w e l l s t h a t were plugged? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 
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Q. But you have note seen the approved APDs or any 

of the w e l l r e p o r t s f o r those — 

A. No ma'am. 

Q. — p a r t i c u l a r wells? 

A. No, every time we get a l e t t e r on i t , I ' d 

immediately c a l l the Commission and t e l l them, you know, 

t h i s i s not us. We don't have these, i t ' s not our — i t ' s 

j u s t not us, we don't know anything about these w e l l s . And 

t o my knowledge, Tempo had nothing t o do w i t h the w e l l s 

from day one. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l I had. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No questions. 

THE WITNESS: I s t h a t i t ? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Hang on, l e t me ask. 

THE WITNESS: Oh, I'm so r r y . 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Pannell, t h i s i s a — E x h i b i t Number 8 — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — the p e t i t i o n i n bankruptcy, the d i s c l o s u r e 

p l a n — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — i t s t a r t s out, I n r e : Tempo Energy — 

A. Uh-huh. 
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Q. — but then we get some documents t h a t apparently 

are from a d i f f e r e n t bankruptcy t h a t ' s i n r e : Joe 

Peterson — 

A. Beg pardon? 

Q. — Peterson. 

A. Well, I t h i n k t h a t ' s documented — Excuse me, go 

ahead. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, I b e l i e v e you're l o o k i n g 

a t an e x h i b i t t o t h a t t i t l e r e p o r t . That's a separate 

document. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Oh, okay, okay. Okay, t h a t ' s 

E x h i b i t — Okay, I'm sorry. So Mr. Peterson declared 

bankruptcy about the same time? 

MR. HALL: I t appears so. 

THE WITNESS: He — d i d n ' t he declare bankruptcy 

back i n — When d i d he declare bankruptcy? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Well, i t ' s — 

MR. HALL: We'll get t o t h a t . 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — 1991. 

Q. (By Chairman Fesmire) So i f I understand t h i s 

c o r r e c t l y , Tempo declared bankruptcy, f i l e d a p l a n of 

r e o r g a n i z a t i o n , t h a t f a i l e d and they converted t o a 

l i q u i d a t i o n p l a n ; i s t h a t — 

A. Yes, s i r . 
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Q. — i s t h a t correct? And t h a t ' s when you acquired 

your i n t e r e s t , sometime i n 1992? 

A. Yes, s i r . A c t u a l l y what I d i d — i f i t ' s 

r e l e v a n t or not, I bought out one of the debtors and then 

got a p o s i t i o n i n the l i q u i d a t i o n and then bought out 

everyone else. 

Q. Okay. You used the phrase t h a t Mr. Peterson 

wasn't working f o r Tempo a t t h a t time. I'm assuming t h a t 

Mr. Peterson had a p r e t t y s i g n i f i c a n t h i s t o r y of working 

f o r Tempo p r i o r t o that? 

A. P r i o r t o 1985, he had sat on most w e l l s f o r Tom 

Garber. Tom was an engineer and l i k e d t o use, you know, 

someone he could d i r e c t t o do, you know, whatever needed t o 

be done on the w e l l . And t h i s Joe Peterson guy, a l l he was 

capable of doing, b a s i c a l l y , was f o l l o w i n g someone else's 

d i r e c t i o n a t t h i s . 

Q. Okay, you say a l l he was capable of doing. Why 

do you say th a t ? 

A. Well, when I say t h a t , he's — he's not the 

b r i g h t e s t rock on the road. 

Q. Okay. Do you know when he l a s t worked f o r Tempo? 

A. I do not, no, s i r . I do know i t hasn't been 

since I've been associated w i t h — you know, since '85, 

b a s i c a l l y . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, I have no other 
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questions. 

Any r e d i r e c t from the Commissioners 1 questions? 

MR. HALL: That completes our examination of t h i s 

witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

MR. BROOKS: One follow-up question, i f I may, 

Mr. Chairman, on Ms. Bailey's question. 

MR. HALL: I don't o b j e c t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. Ms. Baile y asked you i f you had — i f i n your 

examination of the corporate records you had seen any APDs, 

a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r permits t o d r i l l — 

A. D r i l l , yes. 

Q. — t h a t would have been signed by Mr. Peterson. 

Did your examination of the corporate records — d i d t h a t 

i n c l u d e a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r permits t o d r i l l ? 

A. Yeah, we do — we have a f i l e f o r a p p l i c a t i o n s t o 

d r i l l , and no, they do not include any signatures by Mr. 

Peterson. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, thank you. 

MR. HALL: Thank you, Mr. Pannell, you may step 

down. 

THE WITNESS: Do you need t h i s ? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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MR. HALL: Just leave those r i g h t t h e r e , t h a t 

would be f i n e . 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

MR. HALL: The next witness we'd l i k e t o c a l l , 

Mr. Chairman, i s Tom Garber, and I have h i s telephone 

number. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I s he w a i t i n g f o r us? 

MR. HALL: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: That's good. Why don't you go 

ahead and introduce us? 

MR. GARBER: Hell o . 

MR. HALL: Mr. Garber, Scott H a l l speaking. 

MR. GARBER: Yes, s i r . 

MR. HALL: I have you on the speaker phone before 

the New Mexico O i l Conservation Commission — 

MR. GARBER: Okay. 

MR. HALL: — and we w i l l be asking you some 

questions today, as w e l l as the Commissioners — 

MR. GARBER: Okay. 

MR. HALL: F i r s t we w i l l have you sworn i n by the 

co u r t r e p o r t e r . 

MR. GARBER: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Garber, would you r a i s e 

your r i g h t hand, please? 

MR. GARBER: Yes, s i r , I have done. 
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(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

THOMAS B. GARBER (Present by telephone), 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Garber, would you s t a t e your name f o r the 

record, please? 

A. Thomas B. Garber, G-a-r-b-e-r. 

Q. Where do you l i v e , Mr. Garber? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

Q. How are you employed? 

A. No, I'm r e t i r e d . 

Q. Are you a petroleum engineer? 

A. Yes, I am. I do some c o n s u l t i n g work, but I'm 

not a f u l l - t i m e employee. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before 

the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n or the O i l Conservation 

Commission i n New Mexico? 

A. Yes, several times. 

Q. What i s your a s s o c i a t i o n w i t h Tempo Energy, 

Incorporated? 

A. I was formerly president and a pa r t n e r owner. 

Mr. E a r l Douglas, v i c e p r e s i d e n t , and myself were the 

primary stockholders i n the company, and I was the 
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president and chairman, and Mr. Douglas was the vice 

president. 

Q. Over what period of time were you associated with 

Tempo? 

A. Well, from i t s inception u n t i l the early 1990s, 

and i t was — I think Tempo was started i n the l a t e — 

early 1980s, or 1981, »2, '3, something, I thin k . We 

f i n a l l y dissolved the company i n 1991 or '92. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And Mr. Pannell acquired Tempo's 

assets out of bankruptcy; i s that correct? 

A. That i s correct, yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r with Tempo's wel l operations and 

ownership interests i n New Mexico? 

A. Very much so. I was involved i n every w e l l t h a t 

was d r i l l e d and supervised every well t h a t was d r i l l e d as a 

petroleum engineer. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . To your knowledge, did Tempo ever own 

or operate a lease i n Section 4 of Township 22 South, Range 

35 East, i n Lea County, known as the San Simon lease? 

A. No, Tempo had some production j u s t — we had 

two — w e l l , we actually had four wells j u s t south of that 

area on an ARCO farmout and on a P h i l l i p s farmout, but we 

didn't have anything on the San Simon acreage. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you have any knowledge of the San 

Simon lease or the San Simon Number 6 well? 
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A. Well, I d i d n ' t u n t i l j u s t r e c e n t l y when I was 

advised — I had heard some hearsay a w h i l e back t h a t Joe 

Peterson had d r i l l e d a w e l l i n there on the San Simon, but 

i t was only hearsay i n f o r m a t i o n . I d i d n ' t know anything 

about i t u n t i l I received the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t was 

forwarded f o r me t o review. 

Q. Did Tempo Energy ever receive any pr o d u c t i o n 

proceeds or any other b e n e f i t s from the San Simon State 

Number 6 we l l ? 

A. No, we had no f i n a n c i a l i n t e r e s t , no i n t e r e s t of 

any k i n d i n t h a t w e l l . We d i d n ' t pay any of the b i l l s , 

d i d n ' t receive any of the i n t e r e s t . I n f a c t , we had no 

knowledge of the w e l l u n t i l long past when i t was d r i l l e d . 

Q. Did Tempo Energy own or operate the San Simon 6 

Number [ s i c ] well? 

A. No, we never had an i n t e r e s t , never operated i t , 

never had anything t o do w i t h the w e l l . 

Q. Did Tempo Energy conduct any a c t i v i t y on the San 

Simon lease? 

A. No, none whatsoever. 

Q. Do you know Joe Peterson? 

A. Yes, I know Joe Peterson. Joe d i d some work f o r 

us as a helper on some w e l l s t h a t we d r i l l e d e a r l i e r i n New 

Mexico. 

Q. Was Joe Peterson ever authorized t o a c t as agent 
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f o r Tempo on the San Simon well? 

A. No, he was never authorized f o r an agent — or 

f o r Tempo i n any capacity a t any time. 

Q. Was Joe Peterson ever authorized t o use Tempo's 

bond f o r the San Simon well? 

A. No, he was never authorized t o use Tempo's bond. 

I n f a c t , we had no knowledge of the f a c t t h a t apparently he 

d i d use our bond. 

Q. Mr. Garber, I had sent t o you e a r l i e r a packet of 

e x h i b i t s t h a t I have introduced i n t o evidence a t t h i s 

hearing. Do you have those before you? 

A. Yes, s i r , I do. 

Q. I f y o u ' l l look a t E x h i b i t s 1 through 6, I ' l l 

r epresent t o you t h a t those are copies of the w e l l f i l e f o r 

the San Simon State Number 6 w e l l from the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n ' s o n l i n e w e l l f i l e . 

A. Yes, s i r , I have those. 

Q. Do you see the signature on t h e r e by Mr. 

Peterson? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Was Mr. Peterson ever authorized t o s i g n these 

s t a t e forms using Tempo's name? 

A. No, he was not. 

Q. Would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 7? I t i s the C-103 

plugging p l a n . 
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A. Say again, which one was th a t ? 

Q. E x h i b i t Number 7. 

A. What i s i t ? 

A. Form C-103, dated 9-24-90. 

MR. HALL: I t ' s an O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n 

form. I t ' s marked as E x h i b i t Number 7 a t the bottom. 

THE WITNESS: When these were d u p l i c a t e d they 

d i d n ' t come out too w e l l where i t was marked on the bottom. 

Which — what i s i t exactly? 

MR. HALL: I f y o u ' l l look a t the date, i t ' s dated 

September 24, 1990, and i t ' s signed by Guy Baber. 

THE WITNESS: Oh, yes, I have t h a t . I don't know 

any Guy Baber. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Was Guy Baber authorized t o s i g n 

t h i s form on behalf of Tempo Energy, Incorporated? 

A. Not by Tempo. I n f a c t , we never knew the person, 

never even heard of him. 

MR. HALL: A l l r i g h t , I have no f u r t h e r 

questions, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Garber, a t t h i s time 

y o u ' l l be cross-examined by the Commission's a t t o r n e y , Mr. 

David Brooks. 

Mr. Brooks? 

THE WITNESS: Okay, go ahead. 

MR. BROOKS: May I approach? 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. What was your capacity w i t h Tempo a t the time i n 

1987? 

A. I was — Tempo was a c t i v e a t t h a t time, and I was 

pre s i d e n t and an engineer. 

Q. And you mentioned a Mr. Douglas. What was h i s 

capa c i t y w i t h Tempo? 

A. He was the accountant and v i c e p r e s i d e n t . 

Q. There i s a statement i n a document t h a t has been 

admitted t o evidence i n t h i s proceeding t h a t does not 

r e l a t e t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , so I don't want t o 

misrepresent i t . I t r e l a t e s t o another q u a r t e r s e c t i o n i n 

the same s e c t i o n as t h i s w e l l , however. And t h i s statement 

says — i f I can f i n d i t here, j u s t a minute. 

A. I s t h a t the HNG — or I mean the V-F Petroleum 

l e t t e r regarding — 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. — regarding Joe Peterson's use or n e g o t i a t i o n s 

w i t h Tempo? 

Q. Yes, s i r , thank you. 

A. Okay, t h a t i s not t r u e , he had no a u t h o r i z a t i o n . 

I n f a c t , we were unaware of t h a t completely, we had no 

knowledge of t h a t . He had no a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o make t h a t 
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statement, but apparently he had conceived the idea t o use 

the Tempo bond and to f o r t i f y his position. Apparently he 

t o l d V-F Petroleum that he had the r i g h t t o — 

Q. Well — 

A. — contract with Tempo. 

Q. — the specific statement — and f o r some reason 

I'm not f i n d i n g the document, but generally i n the 

statement i t says that Tempo Energy, Inc., w i l l handle 

administration and permitting f o r t h i s w e l l . And did Tempo 

ever allow Joe Peterson or anyone — did Tempo ever enter 

i n t o any agreement with Joe Peterson or with anyone else t o 

do permitting and administration f o r a wel l t h a t someone 

else was operating? 

A. No, we did not. You know, that's not standard 

procedure. We were very active ourselves, and we did a l l 

of our permitting. We didn't have an address i n New 

Mexico, a l l of our business was handled out of Midland. We 

did a l l of our permitting, f i l e d a l l of our forms with the 

Commission and appeared before the Commission when i t was 

necessary ourselves. 

Q. Okay, the exact statement i s , Peterson w i l l 

contract with Tempo Energy, Inc., f o r permitting and other 

administrative purposes. And you're saying th a t that's not 

true? 

A. That's not true, no, s i r . No way i s t h a t t r u e . 
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Q. Okay, when d i d you f i r s t become aware t h a t t h a t 

statement had been made? 

A. When I became aware of t h i s statement? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 

A. Yesterday when I received the document from Mr. 

Scott H a l l . 

MR. BROOKS: Okay, thank you. That's a l l I have. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time, Mr. Garber, the 

Commissioners w i l l get a chance t o question you. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner B a i l e y , do you 

have any questions of t h i s witness? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No, I don't. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And Mr. Garber, I have no 

questions. 

Mr. H a l l , do you have any r e d i r e c t ? 

MR. HALL: No, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Garber, thank you 

very much f o r your time. 

THE WITNESS: Do I need t o stand by, or s h a l l 

I — am I f r e e t o go? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k we're done. 
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THE WITNESS: Okay, thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You bet, s i r . 

THE WITNESS: A l l r i g h t , 'bye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, we have one a d d i t i o n a l 

witness t o c a l l by telephone, Mr. James Brazeal. Here's 

h i s phone number f o r you here. He's not l i s t e d on our 

prehearing statement, but Mr. Brooks and I have agreed t h a t 

he may be invol v e d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Counsel Bada, do we — 

MS. BADA: I t ' s okay. 

(Off the record) 

MR. BRAZEAL: Hello? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Brazeal, can you hear me? This i s 

Scott H a l l c a l l i n g . 

MR. BRAZEAL: Yes. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Brazeal, I have you on the speaker 

phone before the New Mexico O i l Conservation Commission. 

We'd l i k e t o ask you a few questions about a pending matter 

i n v o l v i n g Tempo Energy. F i r s t we need t o have you sworn. 

Would you stand by j u s t a moment, please, s i r ? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Brazeal, are you someplace 

where you can r a i s e your r i g h t hand? 

MR. BRAZEAL: Yes, I am. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would you do so, please, s i r ? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

62 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

JAMES L. BRAZEAL. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. For the record, s t a t e your f u l l name. 

A. James Laurid Brazeal, B-r-a-z-e-a-1. 

Q. Mr. Brazeal, where do you l i v e ? 

A. 70 Cedar Grove T r a i l , Van Alstyne, Texas. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Brazeal, were you i n v o l v e d w i t h 

Capstar D r i l l i n g ? 

A. Yes, I was the — one of the o r i g i n a l — I was 

the o r i g i n a l founder of Capstar D r i l l i n g . 

Q. And d i d Capstar D r i l l i n g operate i n eastern — 

southeastern New Mexico? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did Capstar D r i l l i n g d r i l l w e l l s f o r Tempo 

Energy, Inc.? 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. Did Capstar D r i l l i n g d r i l l w e l l s f o r Peterson 

Petroleum Company, Joe Peterson? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the San Simon lease, 

l o c a t e d i n the v i c i n i t y of Section 4, Township 22 South, 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Range 35 East, i n Lea County? 

A. I'm f a m i l i a r with the name of San Simon. I do 

not remember the legal description of where i t was located. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l d r i l l i n g a well or a number of 

wells on a San Simon lease i n the 1980s? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Who did you d r i l l those wells for? 

A. I know that I d r i l l e d one of them f o r Peterson 

O i l and Gas, and I'm not sure exactly what t h e i r legal name 

was. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l s p e c i f i c a l l y the San Simon State 

Well Number 6? 

A. I r e c a l l that there was a we l l t h a t I d r i l l e d , 

t h a t Capstar D r i l l i n g had a f i n a n c i a l i n t e r e s t i n and was 

the d r i l l i n g contractor. I don't remember the we l l number, 

but i t was the San Simon. 

Q. Was Peterson Petroleum Company the operator of 

that well? 

A. I'm sorry, I didn't hear that question. 

Q. Was Peterson Petroleum Company the operator of 

the San Simon well? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

MR. HALL: I have no further questions, Mr. 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Brazeal, at t h i s time 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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y o u ' l l be cross-examined by Mr. David Brooks, the a t t o r n e y 

f o r t he O i l Conservation Commission — D i v i s i o n , I'm s o r r y . 

MR. BROOKS: May I approach? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. Mr. Brazeal? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I f I understood your testimony c o r r e c t l y w i t h 

regard t o the w e l l t h a t Capstar had an i n t e r e s t i n , you 

don't remember which w e l l t h a t was s p e c i f i c a l l y ? 

A. No, I do not. I t was the San Simon w e l l , and — 

but I do not remember the w e l l number. 

Q. And you said there were several San Simon w e l l s , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Not t o my knowledge, no. 

Q. Oh, you don't know of but one? 

A. You know, t h i s has happened a number of years 

ago, and I have not refreshed by lo o k i n g a t any f i l e s . 

I know t h a t there was one t h a t was San Simon 

w e l l s , which I had the — I d r i l l e d f o r Peterson O i l , and 

they agreed t h a t — we took a f i n a n c i a l i n t e r e s t i n t h a t 

w e l l . 

Q. Okay. Well, I want t o c l a r i f y your testimony. 

Was t h e r e only one w e l l t h a t you d r i l l e d — only one San 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Simon wel l that you d r i l l e d f o r Peterson, or only one tha t 

Capstar had an int e r e s t in? 

A. I believe there was only one that I had — Well, 

I'm sure there was only one I had an i n t e r e s t i n , and I'm 

not sure whether we d r i l l e d additional ones beyond t h a t . 

Q. And i f you — did you d r i l l any wells i n that 

immediate v i c i n i t y f o r anyone else, that you r e c a l l ? 

A. I can't answer tha t , because I don't know where 

the — I don't know the legal description of where the wel l 

was located. 

Q. Okay. Now assuming tha t the w e l l t h a t you had an 

i n t e r e s t i n was the San Simon Number 6 — which you don't 

r e a l l y remember whether i t was or not, correct? 

A. I don't remember i f i t was Well Number 6 or not. 

I know that I had an int e r e s t i n the San Simon w e l l . 

Q. Okay, and you don't remember whether i t ' s Number 

6 or some other number? 

A. No, I do not remember the number of the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. And assuming, though, that i t was the 

Number 6, would you have had any knowledge about the 

f i l i n g s that may or may not have been made with the O i l 

Conservation Division with regard to that well? 

A. I did not see those, except I would have — being 

the d r i l l i n g contractor, I would have seen the d r i l l i n g 

permit. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. But you d i d n ' t have anything t o do w i t h t he 

f i l i n g of the documents w i t h the OCD? 

A. No, I d i d not have anything t o do w i t h t he 

f i l i n g . As the c o n t r a c t o r , I was r e q u i r e d t o have a copy 

of the a c t u a l issued d r i l l i n g permit. 

Q. I f — Do you r e c a l l seeing t h a t d r i l l i n g permit 

s p e c i f i c a l l y ? 

A. Personally, no, but I know t h a t we would — by 

law we were r e q u i r e d t o have i t on s i t e a t the d r i l l s i t e , 

and we would have complied w i t h t h a t . 

Q. Okay. So i f Peterson had had a c o n t r a c t w i t h 

someone else w i t h regard t o the way i n which those w e l l -

p e r m i t t i n g documents were f i l e d , you wouldn't have had any 

knowledge of t h a t , correct? 

A. No. 

MR. BROOKS: Thank you. No f u r t h e r questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , do you have any 

r e d i r e c t ? 

MR. HALL: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time, Mr. Brazeal, 

we're going t o — the Commissioners get the o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

question you. 

The f i r s t w i l l be Commissioner B a i l e y . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I have no questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. Mr. Brazeal, I j u s t have a question. We have an 

ex h i b i t here that i s part of Tempo's evidence i n f r o n t of 

us. I t ' s Exhibit Number 3, and i t ' s an i n c l i n a t i o n report 

t h a t you had signed f o r the San Simon State Number 6. And 

I guess I j u s t noticed that i t was on a Railroad Commission 

of Texas form. Why would you be submitting a report on 

t h i s t o the Railroad Commission i n Texas? 

A. I don't believe that New Mexico had a form 

available at the time, and that was the form we used t o 

relay the information. 

Q. So you used the Railroad Commission form, but i t 

was submitted to the OCD? 

A. That i s correct. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Okay, thank you. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Brazeal, my name i s Mark Fesmire. I'm on the 

Commission also. 

Did you do any d r i l l i n g f o r Tempo Energy out 

there at t h i s same time? 

A. Over the years I did some d r i l l i n g f o r Tempo 

Energy. 

Q. Okay. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. I don't — when you say a t the same time, I don't 

— I don't know what the context of t h a t would be. 

Q. About the same time t h a t the San Simon w e l l was 

d r i l l e d . I t would be '87. 

A. I f you were t o r e f r e s h me as t o what — t h e date 

when t h e San Simon w e l l was d r i l l e d , I might be able t o 

b e t t e r answer t h a t . 

Q. Okay, I t h i n k i t was pe r m i t t e d i n January of '87, 

and the completion r e p o r t was i n September of '87. I t 

looks l i k e most of the work was done i n August. 

A. I don't believe a t t h a t p o i n t i n time t h a t we had 

done any d r i l l i n g i n t h a t year f o r Tempo Energy. We d i d 

some d r i l l i n g f o r them i n 1984. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I have no f u r t h e r 

questions. 

Mr. H a l l , do you have any other questions? 

MR. HALL: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Brazeal, thank you very 

much f o r your time. 

THE WITNESS: A l l r i g h t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Appreciate i t . 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 'Bye. 

Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: At t h i s p o i n t , Mr. Chairman, we would 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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c a l l Jim Bruce t o the stand. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We're going t o get t o t a l k t o 

Mr. Bruce under oath. 

MR. HALL: Here's your o p p o r t u n i t y . 

(Laughter) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s relevance going t o be a 

f a c t o r ? 

(Laughter) 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

JAMES G. BRUCE. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. For the record, s t a t e your name. 

A. James Bruce. 

Q. Mr. Bruce, where do you l i v e and how are you 

employed? 

A. I l i v e i n Santa Fe, New Mexico, and I am an 

at t o r n e y . 

Q. And do you have p a r t i c u l a r e x p e r t i s e i n o i l and 

gas t i t l e examination? 

A. Yes, I've been examining t i t l e t o r e a l p r o p e r t y , 

o i l and gas p r o p e r t i e s , and w r i t i n g t i t l e opinions since 

'82 or '83. 

STEVEN T. 
(505) 

BRENNER, CCR 
989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

70 

Q. And would you b r i e f l y e x p l a i n t o the Commission 

the methodology you use t o examine t i t l e t o o i l and gas 

i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. Of course i n New Mexico you've got t h r e e 

d i f f e r e n t types of lands — w e l l , more than t h a t , you've 

got I n d i a n , f e d e r a l , s t a t e and fee. So when somebody asks 

me t o examine t i t l e , one of the f i r s t t h i n g s I do — or 

a c t u a l l y the f i r s t t h i n g t o do i s , I e i t h e r go t o check the 

f e d e r a l BLM t r a c t books or, more o f t e n , I check the Land 

O f f i c e ' s website, because I get a quick idea of whether the 

land i s f e d e r a l , s t a t e or fee, and then I know where t o 

begin. 

And of course i f i t ' s f e d e r a l land, you've got t o 

examine both the BLM's records and the county records. 

Same t h i n g w i t h the s t a t e , you have t o examine the 

Commissioner's records and the county records, and i f i t 

was fee land you'd only go t o the county records. 

Q. Now i s t h a t t i t l e examination method accepted and 

r e l i e d on by the o i l and gas i n d u s t r y and o i l and gas 

attorneys? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And w i l l your testimony be u s e f u l t o the 

Commission f o r purposes of e s t a b l i s h i n g whether Tempo 

Energy, Incorporated, or Joe Peterson had an ownership 

i n t e r e s t of record i n the acreage t h a t ' s the s u b j e c t matter 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

71 

of t h i s proceeding? 

A. I t h i n k i t w i l l . 

Q. Are you also f a m i l i a r w i t h the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n ' s Rules and Regulations? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How many years have you been p r a c t i c i n g before 

the Commission and the Divis i o n ? 

A. I t h i n k my f i r s t case was e i t h e r i n l a t e 1982 or 

e a r l y 1983, before the D i v i s i o n . 

Q. Approximately how many t i t l e opinions have you 

rendered d u r i n g your career? 

A. I can't give an exact number. I do know t h a t 

since I have been a sole p r a c t i t i o n e r , which was February 

— s t a r t i n g February, 1997, I've prepared over 500 t i t l e 

o p i nions. 

MR. HALL: A l l r i g h t . At t h i s p o i n t , Mr. 

Chairman, we o f f e r Mr. Bruce and h i s testimony, both as a 

f a c t witness and as an atto r n e y w i t h e x p e r t i s e i n o i l and 

gas t i t l e examination. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Brooks. 

MR. BROOKS: I have a b s o l u t e l y no o b j e c t i o n s t o 

Mr. Bruce*s q u a l i f i c a t i o n s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: As the expert? 

MR. BROOKS: As an expert. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But what about the f a c t s ? 
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(Laughter) 

MR. BROQKS-, Well, his knowledge &£ the facts 

w i l l have t o stand on h i s own testimony. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce w i l l be so accepted. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Bruce, d i d you prepare a t i t l e 

r e p o r t a t my request on the southeast q u a r t e r , northeast 

q u a r t e r of Section 4, Township 22 South, Range 35 East i n 

Lea County? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i s t h a t t i t l e r e p o r t labeled as E x h i b i t 9? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you ex p l a i n t o the Commission the procedure 

you u t i l i z e d t o generate t h i s report? 

A. As I sa i d , I f i r s t went t o — on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

one I d i d n ' t know what type of land i t was — I f i r s t went 

t o t he Commissioner's website — or a c t u a l l y I went t o the 

New Mexico Tech website and connected t o the Land O f f i c e , 

and determined t h a t t h i s was a State of New Mexico lease, 

which was issued i n 1977. 

On or about January 20th, I d i d go over t o the 

Land O f f i c e and went t o the records d i v i s i o n and looked a t 

the o i l and gas t r a c t book and the f i l e f o r Lease LG4234, 

which covers a l l of Section 4, and examined t h a t . That was 

p r e t t y — the only documents of record i n the Land O f f i c e ' s 

f i l e , i n s o f a r as t i t l e i s concerned, show t h a t the lease 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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i n t e r e s t " , or "record t i t l e ownership"? 

A. Well, I think there's two meanings, and i t 

depends on whether you're dealing — who you're dealing 

with. Certainly with respect t o federal leases and state 

leases, there i s such a thing as a record t i t l e owner, 

whether or not that person owns any working i n t e r e s t , or 

any i n t e r e s t , any other type of in t e r e s t i n the lease. 

But when the lease i s f i r s t issued, f o r instance, 

I go bid on certain — fo r my c l i e n t s I go bid on state 

leases at the Land Office monthly lease sales, and i f th a t 

lease i s issued t o me, I am the record t i t l e owner of tha t 

lease, and at that point I own 100 percent of what's called 

record t i t l e , and also 100 percent of the working i n t e r e s t , 

and I can assign a l l or any portion of th a t . 

Now, insofar as the Land Office and the federal 

government, they have record t i t l e owners who they look t o 

for various purposes. Commonly, especially when you're 

looking at the county records, a l o t of people w i l l say, 

Well, who's the record t i t l e owner, and who owns i t of 

record i n the county? And that's a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t from 

what's meant by the state and federal record t i t l e 

ownership. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Based on your examination of t i t l e , 

did you determine whether Tempo Energy, Incorporated, was 

the owner of an int e r e s t of record? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. They owned nothing i n the southeast quarter, 

northeast quarter of Section 4 or, f o r t h a t matter, i n any 

of Section 4, i n either the Land Office records or the Lea 

County records. 

Q. Now i s any Tempo Energy i n t e r e s t e n t i t l e d t o 

recognition? 

A. I don't believe so. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did Joe Peterson or Peterson 

Petroleum Company appear of record at a l l ? 

A. Yes, Joe Peterson appeared of record. And l e t me 

s t a r t by saying, when I looked at the records — as I said, 

i n the state records there were the wel l reports t h a t 

Commissioner Bailey talked about. I t used t o be common up 

u n t i l 12 or 15 years ago to f i l e — t o see wel l reports i n 

the Land Office records. 

But i n the Land Office, j u s t looking at t i t l e t o 

the o i l and gas lease, the only t i t l e was the various 

assignments that vested i n EOG Resources, Inc. 

In the county records — and j u s t t o give you an 

idea, what I did was, I did not go to the county cl e r k and 

check the grantor-grantee indexes. What I did i s , I went 

to E l l i o t t and Waldron T i t l e and Abstract Company i n 

Lovington, and I looked at the t r a c t book index, and also 

t h e i r miscellaneous records. And I started w i th the 

beginning of the records and went through — I did the 
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examination i n January. Their books were current as of 

December 1, 2007. And — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 2006? 

THE WITNESS: That i s a typo on t h a t , i t should 

be 2006, that's correct. 

I went to t h e i r t r a c t books. You p u l l out the 

t r a c t books, and the company — and i t l i s t s the grantor-

grantee recording data, the book and page of the 

instrument, and then i f a specific subdivision i s affected, 

southeast quarter, northeast quarter i n t h i s instance, or 

southwest quarter i t l i s t s that — and I started and I went 

through the e n t i r e time. 

There wasn't — there weren't many instruments 

preceding the mid-1970s, because I don't thi n k there had 

been much i n the way of discovery from t h i s section, and so 

there were some old o i l and gas leases, state o i l and gas 

leases that had been released, and maybe a couple of 

assignments. But I did s t a r t from the beginning j u s t t o 

see — j u s t t o make sure whether Tempo showed up at any 

point i n time i n my examination. 

And I went through — I actually went through the 

t r a c t book about three times, because s p e c i f i c a l l y I was 

looking f o r the southeast quarter, northeast quarter of 

Section 4, and I went through a l l instruments t h a t might — 

tha t cover th a t p a r t i c u l a r 40 acres. I also went down the 
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grantor-grantee indexes twice t o s p e c i f i c a l l y look f o r Joe 

Peterson and Peterson Petroleum and Tempo Energy. And one 

o d d i t y about t h i s i s , there i s no assignment. Despite t h i s 

farmout agreement t h a t — I f o r g e t what number Commission 

e x h i b i t i t i s — 

MR. BROOKS: I beli e v e i t ' s 7. 

THE WITNESS: — there i s no assignment from HNG 

or i t s successors t o Joe Peterson under t h a t farmout 

agreement, i n s o f a r as I could t e l l , on any acreage i n 

Section 4. 

However, there were subsequent assignments, t h e r e 

were these San Simon Well Numbers 1 through 5, and I d i d n ' t 

s p e c i f i c a l l y go through each one. There were assignments 

from Joe Peterson t o various e n t i t i e s , you know, one of 

them being V-F Petroleum, and a number of other people. 

But there were never any assignments from e i t h e r 

HNG or i t s successors or Joe Peterson i n t o Tempo Energy on 

any lands i n Section 4. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Let's t u r n t o your t i t l e r e p o r t , 

E x h i b i t 9, and i f you would r e f e r t o the attachment t o t h a t 

E x h i b i t A, what i s that ? 

A. This was an instrument t h a t came out of the t r a c t 

index a t E l l i o t t and Waldron, and i t p e r t a i n e d t o the 

bankruptcy of Joe Peterson, and I guess h i s w i f e , Beverly 

Peterson. I don't know i f t h a t ' s s p e c i f i c a l l y s t a t e d i n 
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here. And t h i s was the drily instrument under which Joe 

Peterson or Peterson Petroleum p o t e n t i a l l y ever claimed 

some type of t i t l e as t o the San Simon State Well Number 6. 

Q. I f you look at the f i r s t page of th a t Exhibit A, 

does i t appear to be an a f f i d a v i t of the bankruptcy 

trustee? 

A. Actually, the f i r s t — I believe the f i r s t page 

of Exhibit A i s an a f f i d a v i t from the Petersons 1 attorney. 

And attached to that i s the trustee's notice of 

abandonment, which i s the bankruptcy trustee. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i n the second page of the 

bankruptcy trustee's notice i t refers t o a Schedule A? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Schedule A, r e a l property. And as you read th a t 

f i r s t paragraph i t says, Except as directed below, l i s t a l l 

r e a l property i n which the debtor has any l e g a l , equitable, 

or future i n t e r e s t . 

And you turn to the next page, i t refers t o the 

SS Number 6. Do you see that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s there also a reference to the State of New 

Mexico O i l and Gas Lease Number? 

A. Yes, LG4234, and then i t l i s t s Unit H, which 

would be the southeast northeast of Section 4 of 22-35. 

Q. I s i t reasonable to conclude that the reference 
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i s t o the San Simon State Number 6 well? 

A. That's what I in t e r p r e t i t t o mean. 

Q. Are you generally f a m i l i a r — Based on your 

experience, are you generally f a m i l i a r with the operation 

of farmout agreements? 

A. Yes, generally. I don't d r a f t them much, but I 

see them a l l the time. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you have the OCD's Exhibit 7 r i g h t 

there i n f r o n t of you? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. I f you turn to — We're t a l k i n g about the farmout 

agreement dated January 16, 1985, now. I f you tur n t o the 

t h i r d page of th a t , A r t i c l e V I I — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i s that what you c a l l an earning w e l l 

provision? 

A. That's how i t ' s generally referred t o . 

Q. Or an earned acreage provision? 

A. Correct. 

Q. B r i e f l y explain how those operate. 

A. Well, generally — and before I looked at t h i s , 

I've always interpreted — the general agreement i s tha t a 

farmout i s an agreement to assign to someone i f they do 

cert a i n acts. And i f certain wells are d r i l l e d , then 

acreage, depending on the Division's well spacing, i s 
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earned upon either d r i l l i n g the well ~ i n t h i s case i t had 

t o have been capable of producing i n commercial quant i t i e s 

before they would earn i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And based on your examination of 

documents of record, you saw no in d i c a t i o n of an assignment 

of the 40 acres i n the southeast of the northeast of 

Section 4, pursuant to t h i s p a r t i c u l a r provision; i s tha t 

r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Let's turn now to A r t i c l e XIV, Abandonment. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Presuming, i f you would, that there were an 

assignment, how do these provisions work with respect t o 

the retention of l i a b i l i t i e s ? 

A. Really, i t ' s subject t o the language of whatever 

the parties agree on, as far as retention of l i a b i l i t i e s . 

And t h i s i s actually one of the e a r l i e r ones I've seen. 

Exxon does them a l l the — I think most of the larger 

companies do them a l l the time now, where i f a wel l i s 

d r i l l e d and i t ' s either not productive or i t ceases 

production and the farmor i s e n t i t l e d t o a reassignment, 

the farmor has the option t o say no, I don't want i t , i n 

case there i s some l i a b i l i t y , p r i m a r i l y plugging or 

environmental l i a b i l i t y . 

And here again, i f there was abandonment, the 
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farmee had t o give n o t i c e , and the farmor had the r i g h t t o 

take over a w e l l i f the w e l l was going t o be abandoned. 

Or secondly under t h i s p r o v i s i o n , i f t h e farmee 

no longer wanted the acreage I t h i n k they could tender a 

reassignment t o the farmor, even i f no w e l l had been 

d r i l l e d , or — assuming the acreage had been earned. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Would the farmee r e t a i n a l l 

l i a b i l i t i e s u n t i l the reassignment of t h a t ? 

A. U n t i l reassignment. This one s p e c i f i c a l l y says 

a t the bottom t h a t — Where does i t say t h a t ? They're 

responsible f o r a l l o b l i g a t i o n s which have accrued under 

the terms of sa i d lease up t o the time of surrender or 

assignment. So the way I i n t e r p r e t e d t h a t was t h a t 

whenever — assuming i t had been reassigned or surrendered 

a t t h a t p o i n t , the farmee would no longer be l i a b l e , except 

f o r maybe some w e l l costs or something t h a t had accrued 

beforehand. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And again r e f e r r i n g back t o the f i r s t 

page of the farmout agreement, i s the farmee Joe D. 

Peterson? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Bruce, do you have an o p i n i o n whether Tempo 

Energy, Incorporated, could meet the d e f i n i t i o n of owner or 

operator or responsible p a r t y w i t h i n the meaning of the 

D i v i s i o n ' s Rules f o r the San Simon State Well Number 6? 
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A. My opinion i s that — not with respect t o the San 

Simon Number 6. 

MR. HALL: That concludes my d i r e c t examination 

of Mr. Bruce. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Brooks? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. Good morning, Mr. Bruce. I've waited a long time 

f o r t h i s . 

(Laughter) 

Q. (By Mr. Brooks) No, actually my father used t o 

have a saying — and I'm sure i t was a quote from somebody, 

I'm not sure from whom — but he used t o say, Great minds 

run i n the same channel. Have you ever heard th a t saying? 

A. No, I haven't. 

Q. Well, assuming i t to be true, would i t then — 

based on that assumption, would i t surprise you th a t your 

t i t l e researches came to the same conclusions as mine? 

A. I'd be glad to know that. 

Q. You did not f i n d any assignment from EOG pursuant 

t o t h i s farmout? 

A. There were — Correct. There were no assignments 

eith e r i n the Land Office records or i n the Lea County 

records assigning any int e r e s t t o Joe Peterson or any of — 

or d i r e c t l y to V-F Petroleum. I noticed you had that other 
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instrument, and — 

Q. Yeah, tha t was the next question I was going to 

ask you. Calling your attention t o the instrument t h a t has 

been marked Exhibits 10 and 11, and i t ' s on the OCD e x h i b i t 

l i s t , which was the l e t t e r from Joe D. Peterson t o HNG O i l 

Company and InterNorth, would i t appear from th a t t h a t 

a c t u a l l y the person who would have had a r i g h t under t h i s 

farmout agreement as to t h i s quarter quarter section i n 

1987 would be — would have been V-F Petroleum? 

A. I did look at that l e t t e r , which Mr. H a l l faxed 

t o me a day and a half ago, and that's what i t would 

appear. My only caveat on that i s , apparently, from what I 

saw on the other San Simon wells i n Section 4, Mr. Peterson 

always kept — or usually kept a small i n t e r e s t , and I 

thin k that's r e f l e c t e d i n t h i s bankruptcy f i l i n g , where he 

had, you know, 10 or 12 or 3 percent of a w e l l . 

Q. But there actually i s n ' t — other than the 

bankruptcy, what was asserted by the bankruptcy trustee, 

there actually i s n ' t any evidence th a t Mr. Peterson owned 

any i n t e r e s t i n the p a r t i c u l a r quarter quarter where t h i s 

w e l l i s located? 

A. Well, f o r t h i s 40 acres that's the only 

instrument I saw whereby any t i t l e was transferred, up 

u n t i l about seven or eight years ago when EOG — I can't 

remember who they assigned i t t o , but they assigned some 
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i n t e r e s t i n t h a t 40 acres t o , l i k e Santa Fe Energy 

Resources or — 

Q. But not t o Peterson or Tempo? 

A. Not t o Peterson, not t o Tempo, and not t o V-F 

Petroleum. 

Q. Okay. Now you answered a question about the term 

"operator". 

Excuse me f o r the delay. May I approach the 

witness? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

Q. (By Mr. Brooks) I ' l l show you what I w i l l 

represent t o you — represent as being a page from the OCD 

Rulebook and c a l l your a t t e n t i o n t o Section 7.0.(5) — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — of the OCD Rules, and ask you t o read t h a t 

i n t o the record, please. 

A. I t says, Operator s h a l l mean a person who, duly 

authorized, i s i n charge of the development of a lease or 

the operation of a producing property or who i s i n charge 

of a f a c i l i t i e s operation or management. 

Q. Okay. Mr. Bruce, i t would not be necessary, 

would i t , t h a t an instrument by which a person would be 

authorized t o act on behalf of the owner of a lease or t o 

be i n charge of a w e l l or f a c i l i t y on behalf of the owner 

be f i l e d of record i n the county records? 
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A. No, you are correct. I mean, operating 

agreements and items l i k e that are not always recorded i n 

the county records. 

Q. And when you said there was no basis f o r Tempo to 

be operator of t h i s w e l l , you were l i m i t i n g t h a t t o your 

examination of county records, correct? 

A. Yes, I was l i m i t i n g that t o my examination of the 

county and state records, and also on the basis of Tempo's 

witnesses here. 

Q. Okay, so you are not purporting t o apply any 

legal expertise other than s p e c i f i c a l l y the examination of 

the records i n making that conclusion? 

A. That's correct, and I think what I was looking 

at, i n p a r t i c u l a r , on t h i s — and t h i s i s before I 

listened t o the witnesses today — was, the person who duly 

authorized — and that gets back to the county records, I 

couldn't see where i n the county records Tempo was duly 

authorized t o conduct these operations. And f o r instance, 

there were no powers of attorney i n the county records from 

Tempo to Mr. Peterson or to Mr. Baber. 

Q. But you w i l l agree with me that those type of 

documents, insofar as they apply t o authorization t o 

conduct operations as opposed t o ownership of working 

i n t e r e s t , would not necessarily be of record? 

A. That's e n t i r e l y possible, correct. 
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MR. BROOKS: That's a l l . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , r e d i r e c t ? 

MR. HALL: No r e d i r e c t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. I n your examination of the State Land O f f i c e 

Lease i n question, thank you f o r p u t t i n g i t i n order. 

(Laughter) 

Q. I t i s unusually neat. 

But d i d you n o t i c e t h a t t h e r e were other OCD 

r e p o r t s f i l e d f o r San Simon w e l l s , other than Number 6? 

A. Yes, I d i d . I don't remember them s p e c i f i c a l l y , 

and I d i d n ' t take notes on them. But yes, I saw — They 

were p r i m a r i l y completion r e p o r t s on other San Simon w e l l s . 

Q. Right. Did you n o t i c e t h a t the name t h a t was 

given on most of those papers were f o r Tempo and signed by 

Mr. Peterson as consultant? 

A. I no t i c e d t h a t , and t h a t ' s why I thought i t 

extremely important t o look a t the county records, since 

t h e r e was — other than those completion r e p o r t s , t h e r e was 

not h i n g i n the Land O f f i c e records regarding an ownership 

by Peterson or Tempo. 

Q. Right. But because they're absent doesn't mean 

t h a t t h e r e was not a document or an a u t h o r i z a t i o n i n place, 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

87 

ri g h t ? 

A. That i s correct, I j u s t haven't seen one. 

Q. But the other wells that were d r i l l e d , the other 

San Simon wells that were d r i l l e d , from your t i t l e 

examination you can't t e l l i f that l i s t i n g of wells was f o r 

f u l l i n t e r e s t or three or f i v e percent l i k e you noted i n 

your e a r l i e r testimony? You said i t was common practice to 

assign — 

A. Oh, I did not do a complete rundown of t i t l e . I 

thi n k i f I had looked at a l l the t i t l e i n t h i s section, i t 

probably would have cost i n excess of $12,000 or so to look 

at. 

But what I did do i s , a f t e r noting the 

instruments from the t r a c t books and from the t i t l e 

companies' miscellaneous records, I did look at each 

instrument t o see i f there were any instruments i n Section 

4 by which Tempo had acquired an i n t e r e s t . And although I 

did not go through each instrument, where Peterson d id 

appear t o have t i t l e , which i s on other acreage, l i k e i n 

the San Simon Well Number 2, even though there was no 

assignment i n t o him, there were various assignments from 

him t o other e n t i t i e s . 

Q. Okay, so we could make an assumption th a t of a l l 

these other San Simon wells that were completed i n the name 

of Tempo and signed by Mr. Peterson as agent f o r them were 
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r e t a i n e d by Tempo? 

A. Tempo d i d n ' t have any t i t l e whatsoever. 

Q. That you have found i n the records, but t h e r e 

were w e l l s completed i n t h e i r name, r i g h t ? 

A. Well, t h a t , I suppose, gets back t o the testimony 

of Mr. Pannell and the other Tempo witnesses. You know, I 

d i d not look a t the D i v i s i o n ' s — I d i d look a t the 

D i v i s i o n ' s f i l e on the San Simon Well Number 6, and I of 

course saw Tempo's name i n the r e . But I t h i n k t h a t 

question i s more d i r e c t e d t o Mr. Pannell. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l I have, thank 

you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I have no questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Bruce, i f I understand t h i s chain t h a t you've 

constructed c o r r e c t l y , Mr. Peterson d r i l l e d t h i s w e l l , 

p u r p o r t e d l y on Tempo's behalf, on a lease t h a t he owned, or 

t h a t he had a farmout on? 

A. He had a farmout on i t , on p o r t i o n s of i t . 

Q. Okay. But the assignment of an i n t e r e s t t o 

Peterson was never made, probably because t h e w e l l was not 

considered capable of producing economic q u a n t i t i e s ? 

A. Yes, no assignment t o Peterson was ever made on 
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the southeast quarter, northeast quarter of Section 4, and 

I would presume — i t appears that i t never produced. I 

didn't look at the Division's production records. 

But also, there was never an assignment from HNG 

to Peterson on the other acreage where there were 

productive wells d r i l l e d . So apparently the only t i t l e 

document i s the farmout agreement as amended tha t Mr. 

Brooks submitted. 

Q. Okay. So on the other San Simon wells, you 

didn't have t o look at any of the recorded t i t l e on those, 

did you? 

A. I looked at i t to confirm that Tempo never 

acquired an in t e r e s t i n any of those wells. 

Q. Okay. Did Peterson acquire an i n t e r e s t i n those 

wells eventually? 

A. From what I could t e l l , he was always deemed the 

o r i g i n a l owner, out of HNG, and then he assigned i n t e r e s t s 

to various people. 

Q. Okay, but that wasn't the way i t worked on the 

quarter section i n question here? 

A. Other than that bankruptcy f i l i n g , that's the 

only instrument a f f e c t i n g that p a r t i c u l a r 40 acres under 

which Mr. Peterson claimed an in t e r e s t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H a l l , any r e d i r e c t on the 

Commissioners * questions? 
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MR. HALL: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Bruce, thank you 

very much. 

MR. HALL: That concludes our case, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't we — Would the 

Commission want t o decide i n executive session or i n 

open — 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: (Nods) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — i n executive session. 

Okay, a t t h i s time, assuming t h e r e are no c l o s i n g 

statements from e i t h e r p a r t y — 

MR. HALL: Well, I — very b r i e f — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

MR. BROOKS: I would also l i k e t o make a very 

b r i e f one, e s p e c i a l l y i f Mr. H a l l does. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Well, I guess you go 

f i r s t , Mr. Brooks. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Well, Mr. Chairman, honorable 

Commissioners, I don't t h i n k I can say much more t h a t w i l l 

shed any l i g h t on t h i s . I t seems t o be f a i r l y dark. 

What we have t o o f f e r i s the paperwork. The 

t i t l e a n a l y s i s , we be l i e v e , i s i n c o n c l u s i v e because i t 

shows t h a t Peterson had a farmout on t h i s s e c t i o n a t some 

p o i n t i n time. I t also shows t h a t he apparently assigned 

t h a t farmout t o HNG p r i o r t o the date t h i s w e l l was — I 
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mean t o V-F Petroleum p r i o r t o t h i s date, t h i s w e l l was 

d r i l l e d . There's no evidence that there was ever an 

assignment t o Peterson. 

There's c e r t a i n l y no evidence th a t Tempo had 

t i t l e , neither I nor Mr. Bruce has developed any such 

evidence. I t ' s clear that Tempo's name i s on a l l the OCD 

documents, and there's a suggestion i n the instrument we 

put i n evidence that there was an agreement whereby Tempo 

acted as operator f o r administrative purposes. I t ' s j u s t a 

suggestion, you can take i t f o r whatever i t ' s worth. I t ' s 

contradicted by Mr. Garber's testimony. I would not want 

to suggest th a t Mr. Garber i s l y i n g because I operate on 

the assumption generally people don't do t h a t , but the 

Commission can come to whatever conclusions i t wants t o . 

I would suggest there's a p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t — at 

least one other person was mentioned who was i n management 

with Tempo, and there's always the p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t t h a t 

other i n d i v i d u a l or somebody else with Tempo who wasn't 

mentioned could have been involved i n something w i t h Mr. 

Peterson th a t Mr. Garber was unaware of. 

We're dealing i n inferences where we haven't been 

able t o develop d i r e c t evidence, but the point i s th a t the 

Commission's records are what we have t o go on, and we've 

put i t a l l before you and we'll l e t your Honors make the 

decision. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. Brooks. 

Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Chairman, I thought i t would be 

h e l p f u l t o frame t h i s i n q u i r y w i t h i n the s t a t u t o r y and 

r e g u l a t o r y parameters of the D i v i s i o n ' s plugging and 

enforcement a u t h o r i t y , so I ' d l i k e t o provide each of you 

w i t h copies of the D i v i s i o n ' s Rules, excerpts from the 

D i v i s i o n ' s Rules, which I t h i n k are a p p l i c a b l e , and I have 

h i g h l i g h t e d those. I t h i n k they have a s i g n i f i c a n t bearing 

on t he Commission's a c t i o n today. 

I t h i n k i t ' s important f o r t he Commission t o bear 

i n mind i t s — the agency's a u t h o r i t y , and I b e l i e v e t he 

r e l e v a n t s t a t u t e s are Section 70-2-12.B.(18), which 

authorizes the agency t o do a l l acts necessary t o p r o p e r l y 

p l u g dry and abandoned w e l l s . And the D i v i s i o n i s also 

a u t h o r i z e d t o r e q u i r e f i n a n c i a l assurance from operators, 

i n d i v i d u a l s conducting a c t i v i t i e s on w e l l s i n the s t a t e . 

You also ought t o bear i n mind t h a t under Section 

70-2-12.B.(8), the agency has the s p e c i f i c a u t h o r i t y t o 

i d e n t i f y ownership of w e l l s and leases and equipment i n 

t h i s s t a t e . From t h a t s t a t u t o r y framework, I t h i n k you 

then look a t the implementing r e g u l a t i o n s t h a t t he D i v i s i o n 

has promulgated over the years t o enforce those p r o v i s i o n s 

of t he O i l and Gas Act. 

I t h i n k the s t a r t i n g p o i n t f o r our i n q u i r y today 
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i s Rule 41 — t h a t ' s included w i t h i n t h e excerpt — and 

t h a t addresses e n f o r c e a b i l i t y , and i t ' s d i r e c t e d against 

any person who conducts any a c t i v i t y t o a per m i t , o b l i g e s 

them t o comply w i t h the D i v i s i o n ' s Rules and Regulations. 

That would include g e t t i n g f i n a n c i a l assurances, plugging 

w e l l s t h a t they d r i l l . 

Now i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case I b e l i e v e , because of 

the way these r e g u l a t i o n s are framed, i n a plugging case i t 

i s the D i v i s i o n ' s burden t o e s t a b l i s h who t h e owner, 

operator or responsible p a r t y i s , f o r purposes of 

enforcement. And I would submit t o you t h a t the D i v i s i o n 

has f a i l e d i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case t o do so. 

You might look a t the D i v i s i o n ' s Rules a t Rule 7. 

Again, Mr. Brooks pointed these out. These d e f i n e operator 

and owner. There i s no evidence t h a t the D i v i s i o n has 

o f f e r e d t o you today t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t Tempo Energy, I n c . , 

meets e i t h e r of those d e f i n i t i o n s under Rule 7. 

Also look a t the D i v i s i o n ' s Rule 101.A, and you 

should i n q u i r e whether Tempo Energy i s a person or f i r m who 

has d r i l l e d or acquired or i s d r i l l i n g or proposes t o d r i l l 

t h e San Simon Number 6. No evidence t o support t h a t a t 

a l l . 

Then again, look a t the d e f i n i t i o n of Rule 40. 

Question i s whether t h a t r u l e would embrace Tempo Energy a t 

a l l . Rule 40 r e f e r s only t o operator. The D i v i s i o n i s 
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asking you t o i n f e r on the basis of what I would say are 

forged, a l t e r e d documents, t h a t are disavowed by t h e Tempo 

Energy o f f i c e r s , t h a t Tempo Energy i s t o be an operator. I 

don't t h i n k you can make t h a t assumption. You cannot make 

t h a t f i n d i n g on the basis of a l t e r e d documents. 

And then again, f i n a l l y , look a t Rule 41, 

e n f o r c e a b i l i t y . Again, i t ' s addressed t o any person who 

conducts any a c t i v i t y pursuant t o a per m i t , a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

order or w r i t t e n a u t h o r i z a t i o n or approval from the 

D i v i s i o n . What i s the evidence t h a t the D i v i s i o n has 

brought t o you today t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t Tempo Energy has 

done any of those t h i n g s on the San Simon Well Number 6? I 

don't t h i n k there's any t o support i t a t a l l . 

The D i v i s i o n has also f a i l e d t o e s t a b l i s h any 

evidence a t a l l t h a t there was any power of a t t o r n e y , other 

a u t h o r i t y f o r Mr. Peterson t o act on Tempo Energy's behalf 

a t a l l . There's some key testimony you heard today from 

Mr. Garber. He esta b l i s h e d f o r the record, u n r e f u t e d , t h a t 

Peterson d i d not have t h a t a u t h o r i t y . 

So d i d Mr. Pannell. I n f a c t , I had Mr. Pannell 

check Tempo Energy's records. He gave very important 

testimony based on h i s review of the co r p o r a t i o n ' s records. 

He e s t a b l i s h e d t h a t those records d i d not c o n t a i n any 

evidence of a power of at t o r n e y or any other agency or 

a u t h o r i t y f o r Joe Peterson t o act on Tempo's behalf. 
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That's important, because under the New Mexico 

Rules of Evidence, absence of the documents are used t o 

prove the non-existence of a matter. And you may r e l y upon 

th a t evidence, absence of documents, t o establish t h a t 

there was no authority. And the r u l e t h a t allows t h a t i n 

t h i s state i s Rule 11.803.H. 

I think the preponderance of the evidence shows 

you th a t Tempo disavowed any ownership, they had no 

ownership of record, they disavowed authorization of 

Peterson t o act on t h e i r behalf. The record does establish 

t h a t Peterson had an ownership i n t e r e s t of record, at least 

a colorable claim to t i t l e , but not Tempo. 

I t i s undisputed by the Division t h a t these we l l 

f i l e records were altered by someone at some point, we 

simply don't know who. And the Division has not come 

forward with evidence to establish that those a l t e r a t i o n s 

were authorized by Tempo Energy. 

Based on that, we're asking the Commission t o 

deny the Division's Application with respect t o Tempo 

Energy and, by extension, Travelers Indemnity Company. 

Even i f the Commission does t h a t , bear i n mind 

that the Division s t i l l has recourse. I t make seek t o 

pursue Peterson, Peterson Petroleum Company, to the extent 

i t can. I t ' s possible i t may make demand on EOG Resources. 

They continue t o be the lessee of record f o r t h i s lease and 
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t h e w e l l . No evidence t h a t any demand was ever made on 

them or t h a t they were ever contacted about t h i s 

proceeding. 

And f i n a l l y , there i s always a v a i l a b l e t o the 

D i v i s i o n the Reclamation Fund t o do the plugging. Based on 

t h a t , we ask t h a t the D i v i s i o n ' s A p p l i c a t i o n be denied w i t h 

respect t o Tempo and Travelers. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, gentlemen, very 

much. 

At t h i s time the Commission w i l l go i n t o 

executive session f o r the sole purpose of determining i t s 

d e c i s i o n i n t h i s matter. We'll reconvene upon the 

completion of those d e l i b e r a t i o n s . 

(Off the record a t 11:26 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 12:42 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, l e t ' s go back on the 

record. Let the record r e f l e c t f o r the past 20 minutes 

t h a t t he O i l Conservation Commission was meeting i n 

executive session t o d e l i b e r a t e on Cause Number 13,711. 

That was t h e only item t h a t was discussed d u r i n g t h e 

d e l i b e r a t i o n s . We have now come back i n t o executive 

session [ s i c ] . 

The Chair would e n t e r t a i n a motion t o dismiss 

Cause Number 13,711 wi t h o u t p r e j u d i c e , because t h e 

Commission b a s i c a l l y found the evidence i n s u f f i c i e n t t o 
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draw the necessary conclusions, and the Chair would 

e n t e r t a i n a motion t o dismiss t h a t w i t h o u t p r e j u d i c e . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I so move. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n favor s i g n i f y by 

saying "aye". 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the record r e f l e c t t h a t 

the Commission de c i s i o n was unanimous, and we w i l l d i r e c t 

counsel t o d r a f t an order dismissing Cause Number 13,711 

w i t h o u t p r e j u d i c e . 

The Commission would l i k e t o know, before they 

can make t h i s d e c i s i o n , the s t a t u s of the other San Simon 

w e l l s , the production from t h i s w e l l and the other San 

Simon w e l l s , who received the proceeds of t h a t p r o d u c t i o n , 

the s t a t u s of any D i v i s i o n orders and who were the 

b e n e f i c i a r i e s of those D i v i s i o n orders, and was th e r e any 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y or l i a b i l i t y on the p a r t of EOG on t h i s 

matter? 

And w i t h t h a t , l i k e I s a i d , w e ' l l d i r e c t counsel 

t o d r a f t an order t o t h a t e f f e c t f o r our si g n a t u r e a t the 

next r e g u l a r l y scheduled O i l Conservation Commission 

meeting. 

I s there any other business before the Commission 
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today? 

(Off the record) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: With t h a t , the Chair would 

e n t e r t a i n a motion t o adjourn. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I move we adjourn. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A motion and second have been 

received t o adjourn. A l l those i n fav o r , s i g n i f y by saying 

"Aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Opposed? 

Let the record r e f l e c t t h a t the meeting of the 

O i l Conservation Commission was adjourned a t 11:45 a.m. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

11:45 a.m.) 

* * * 
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